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15 l N. 2!!ll STREET 
P. 0. BOX 1006 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535 

INDEPEN OENT AUOITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor Scoll Fontenot 
and Members or the Counc il 
City of Eunice, Louisiana 

Report on the Aul.lit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

TELEPHONE: 
337-457.9324 

FAX. 
337-457-8743 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, the business-type 
activities, and each 1m-1jor fund of the City of r:unice, 1.ouisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and 
the related notes to the linancia l st;;itements, ,-vhich col lcctivcly comprise the City of Eunice, Louisiana ' s nasic 
linancial statements as li sted in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of 
Eunice, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles genera lly accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with aud iting standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America 
and the standards applicable lo tinancial audits contained in Government Auditin?, Standarc/.<,. issued by rhe 
Comptrol ler General of the United States. Our responsibi I ities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor' s Responsibilities fo r the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent oft he City of Eunice, Loui.siana and lo meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements re lating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 



Emphasis of Maller 

As discussed in Nole I to the financial statements, the City implemented Government Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 87, Leoses, for the year ended June 30, 2022. As a result, the Board now recognizes 
cenain lease assets, liabilities, and lease amorti zation for leases that were previously classi fied as operating 
leases and rent expense. The implementation was applied retroactively and prior period balances presented 
in Notes 6 and 7 were restated for leased assets and leased liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2021. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to thi s matter. 

R espo11sibililies of Ma11ageme11I for tlte Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation , and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is requi red lo evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Eunice, Louisiana ' s abi lity lo continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any current ly known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thercafler. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance wilh generally accepted audiling standards and Governmenl Auditing 
Sfandards wil l always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resul ting from error. as fraud may involve coll usion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, indi vidually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• fdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rcasonahleness or significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the City of Eunice, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, signiticant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Required Suppleme11tary lnformatio11 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
information, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability, and s~hedule of employer pension 
contributions on pages 77-85 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a pa11 of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational. economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because 
lhe limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The City of Eunice, Louisiana has not presented management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a rarL of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Suppleme11ta,y /11/ormation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fo,ming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Ci ty of Eunice, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining fund financial 
statements, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments lo agency head, the judicial system 
funding schedule, and other schedules, as li sted in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly lo the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial s tatements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund 
financial statements, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, the judicial 
system funding schedule, and other schedules, as listed in the table of contents, arc fairly stated, in all materi al 
respects, in relation to the basic financic1I statements as a whole . 

.., 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

Tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 8, 2022, on 
our consideration of the City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other ma!ters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on cornpliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing S1andcml~ in considering City of Eunice, 
Louisiana's internal control over fimmcial reporting and compliance. 

~~1:.?u:1:~~& YbJ) 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 8; 2022 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Posit ion 

Ju11e 30, 2022 
Govemmentnl llusiness-Type 

Activities Activities Total 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,357,386 $ 87,94 1 $ 7,445,327 

Investments. al cost 500.000 500,000 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles): 
Accounts 406,330 462,289 868,6 19 

Taxes 588, 109 588, I 09 

Due from other funds 73,956 73,956 

Prepaid Items 136,428 30,685 167,1 13 
Rest ricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 35 1, 180 35 1,180 

Capital assets: 
Depreciable (net) I 1,747,477 5.549,693 17,297, 170 

Non-depreciable 1,358,665 1,358,665 

Right of use assets (net) 358,907 94,819 453,726 
Total assets 22.453.302 6,650,563 29,103, 865 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 2,147,614 150,052 2,297,666 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payab le 585,805 77,677 663,482 

Accrued liabilities 110,804 I I 5.652 226,456 

Due 10 other funds 73,956 73,956 
Compensated absences payable 14,642 14,642 

Payable from restricted assets -
Customers' deposits 4 13,555 41 J,555 

No11-current liabilities 
Due within one year: 

Note payable 66,017 66,017 

Lease liability 94,008 34.059 128,067 
Due in more than one year: 

Compensated absences 96,207 5, 145 101 ,352 
Net pension liability 5,099,200 554,937 5,654,137 
Note payab le 290. 195 290, 195 
Lease I iabi l ity 265,022 56,6 11 32 1,633 

Total liabilities: 6,681,214 1,272,278 7,953,492 

Deferred In nows of Resources 
Deferred innows related to pensions 2 ,8 16,838 260,023 3,076,861 

Net Position: 
Investment in capita I, net of related debt 12,749,930 5,549,693 18,299.623 

Restricted for prepaid items 136.428 136,428 
U 11 restricted 2,2 16,506 (281,379) 1,935 ,127 

Total net posi tion $ 15, 102,864 $ 5,268,314 $ 20,371, 178 

The accomp,mying notes arc an integral part o f the basic Jinancial s tatements. 
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Activities: 
Government activities: 

General government 
Public safety: 

Police 
Fire 

Streets 

Culture and recreation 
Sanitation 

Airport 

r nterest 

Total government activities 

Business type activities: 

Gas 

Sewer 
Total business-type activities 

Total 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOU[Sl!\NA 

Statcrrcnt of Activities 
Year Fnded June JO, 2022 

Program Revenues 

Fees, Fines, 

and Charges 
Operating 

Grants and 
Capita l 

Grants and 

Expenses for Scr.~ces Contributions Contributions 

$ 2,519,336 

2,456,891 

1.910,648 
1.687, 166 
1,0 17,587 

$ 565,215 $1,818,458 $ 

63,982 
I I 3,527 
23,900 

9,793,037 

l ,789,746 
1,826,887 

3,616,633 

1 I ,873 

93,878 

670,966 

1,664,134 

1,266,111 

2,930,245 

1,8 I 8,458 

$13.409,670 $3,60 1,2 11 $1,818,458 

Gern::ral Revenues: 

Taxes -
Property taxes, leV1ed for general purpose 

Sales and use taxes, levied for general purposes 
Payment in lieu of taxes 
Franchise and chain store taxes 

Interest and investment earnings 

M iscellancous 

Nonemployer pension contribution 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and trnnsfors 

Change in net assets 

Net position - June 30, 2021 

Net position - June 30, 2022 
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Net (Expense) Revenues and 
Changes in Ne! Assets 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Tota l 

$ (135,663) $ $ ( 135,663) 

(2,445,018) (2,445.018) 

(I, 910,648) (1,910,648) 

(1,687,166) (1 ,687,166) 

(923,709) (923,709) 

(63,982) (63,982) 

( 11 3,527) ( 11 3,527) 

(23,900) (23,900) 

(7 ,303,6 l 3) (7,303,613) 

(125,612) (125,612) 

(560,776) (560,776) 

(686,388) (686,388) 

{7,303,6 13) (686,388) (7,990,00 I) 

122,325 122,325 

6,976,461 6,976,461 

8,000 8,000 
l ,436,595 1,436,595 

3 l,408 2,890 34,298 

1,443,962 1,443,962 

230,952 20,247 25 1,199 
(573,496) 573,496 

9,676,207 596,633 10,272,840 

2,372,594 (89,755) 2,282.839 

12,730,270 5,358,069 18,088,339 

$ 15, I 02,864 $ 5,268,314 $20,371. 178 

The accompanying notes are an integrnl part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE., LOUISlANA 
Balance Sheet - G.Jvemmental Funds 

June 30, 2022 

St. Landry & Other 
Cienerat Sales Tax Acadia Parish Governmental 

ASSETS Fund Fund Fire District funds 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,240.587 ~ 4,687,770 $ 305,424 $ 123.605 
In vestments. at cost 500.000 
Receivables 

(net of allowance for uncollectibles): 
Accounts 406,330 
Taxes 9,655 

Due from other funds 350,3 19 54,761 807 
Prepaid items 136,428 

Total assets s 3.143,319 s 5,242,531 s 305,424 $ 124.412 

LIABILITIES A ND FUND BA LANCES 

Liabilities: 
Account payable 347,345 $ 2..18.460 $ s 
Accrued liabilities 107,129 3,675 
Due to other funds 133,854 345,990 

Total liabilit ies 588,'.128 242,135 345,990 
fund balances: 

Nonspendable for prepaid items 136.428 
Assigned 5,000.3% (40,566) 124,412 
Unassigned 2.418,563 

Total fund balances 2,554,991 5,000,396 (40,566) 124,412 

Toca I liabilities and fund balances s 3,143,319 $ 5,242,531 $ 305,424 $ 124,412 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Tota l 
$ 7,357,386 

500,000 

406,330 
9,655 

405,887 

t36.-ns 
s 8,815,686 

$ 585.805 
110,804 
479,844 

1.176.453 

136,428 
5,084,242 
2,418,563 
7,639,233 

$ 8,815.686 



CITY OF EUNlC[, LOUISIANA 
Reconci liation of the Governrnental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2022 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at June 30, 2022 

Total net position reported for governmental activit ies in the statement 
of net posi tion is different because: 

Capital and right to use leased assets used in governmental activities 
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the 
funds. Those assets consist of: 
Capital assets: 

Land 
Building and Recreation, net of $8,069,257 accumulated depreciation 
Jnfrastructure, nel of $3,350,957 accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, net of $3,069,988 accumulated depreciation 
Vehicles, net of $2,050,249 accumulated depreciation 

Right 10 use assets: 
Equipment, net of $51917 accumulated amortization 

Vehicles, net of $62,436 accumulated amortization 

Revenues in the statements of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds 

Elimination of interfund assets and liabilities: 
Due from other funds 
Due to other funds 

Amounts related to pension recognition are not due and payable in the 
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not rcpor1ed as liabi lities in 1he funds. Those 
liabilities consist of: 

Compensated absences 
Lease payable 
Note payable 

Total net posit ion of governmental funds activities June 30, 2022 

$ 1,358,665 

5,153,166 
4,962,689 

358,886 
1,272,736 

l 7 l ,598 
187,309 

(405,887) 
405,887 

(96,207) 

(359,030) 
(356,212) 

$ 7,639,233 

13,106,142 

358,907 

578.455 

(5,768,424) 

(811 ,449) 

$ 15, I 02,864 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY o r f::UNICE. LOUISIANA 

S1atement ofReven11es. E..'<l)cnditurcs , and Change in 
rund 13alanccs • Govemmen1al Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

St. Landry & O1her 
General Siilcs T.ix Acadia Parbh Governmental 

fund f-'und Fire District Funds Total 

Revenues 

Tax.;:s $ 1,558,920 s 7,0 15.122 $ $ $ 8.574,042 
Licenses and pem1its 565,215 565,21.5 
lnlergovcmmental revenues 2, 103,304 J.592 359,927 3,781 2.470,604 
Fines, forfeitures and bonds 10,)93 1.680 11,873 
Liberty Cajun Music Show 93.878 93,878 

In terest 5,453 24,742 705 508 3 1.408 
Miscellaneous 799,816 799.8 16 

Tota l revenues 5, 136,779 7,043,456 360.632 5,969 12,546,836 

fapenditu res 
Current - general government 

Administrative 1,950.384 224,903 507 2, 175,794 

Public safely 4,267,22'.! )08,070 147.383 4,522,675 
Public work.~ I, 190,728 552,291 1,743,019 

I lcahh and welforc 13,348 13,348 

Cuhure and recreation 82 1,329 169,820 991,149 

Other 85,927 85,927 

Capital outlay 2,089,946 2,089,946 

Debi service: 
Principal retirement 131 ,824 13 1,824 

Interest and fisca l charges 23,900 23,900 

Total expend itures 8.328,938 3,300,754 147,383 507 11 ,777,582 

Exces> (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (3, 192,160) 3,74~,702 213,249 5,462 769,254 

Other IJnancing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 5,107.403 5, !07,401 

Operating tr,111s lers oul (48,000) (5.332,899) (300,000) (5,680,899) 
Lease proceeds 427,260 427,260 

Total other financing 5,059,403 (4,905,639) (300,000) (146,236) 
sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency)ofreve1111es 

and other sources over 

e.xpend it ures and 01 her uses 1,867,244 ( I, 162.937) (86,751) 5,462 623,018 

Fund balances, beg inn ing 687,747 6, 163,333 46,185 118,950 7,016,215 
Fund balam:es, ending $ 2,554,991 $ 5,000.396 s (40,566) $ 124,4 12 $ 7,639,233 

The accompanying notes are an in tegral part o f the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF LUNICI::, LOUISIANA 
Reconci I iation or the Statement of Revenues, ExpenditL1res, and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

Y car Ended June 30, 2022 

Total net changes in fund balance at June 30, 2022 per statement 
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities 
in 1he statement of activil ies is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays and right of use assets 
as expenditures; however, in the statement of activities, the cost 
of those assets is al located over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation or amortization expense. 

Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on the statement 
o f revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Right or use assets which are considered expenditures on the 

$ 1,662,686 

(924,217) 

statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in rund balances $ 

Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 

427,260 

(68 ,353) 

Payments on long tenn debt 
Payments on right of use assets 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide 
current financial resources <:1re not reported as revenues in 
the funds 

Net effect of pension liability recognition 

Some items reported in the statement of acti vities do not require 
the use of cu1Tent financial resources and, therefore, arc not 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These activities 
consist o f: 

Compensated absences 
Proceeds from right of use lease assets 

Total net changes in net position at June 30, 2022 per statement of activities 

63,594 

68,230 

26,278 

(427,260) 

The 1-1ccompanying notes are an integral part of the basic fimmcial statements. 
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$ 623,018 

738,469 

358,907 

131,824 

(38,661) 

960,019 

(400,982) 

$ 2,372,594 



Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary rund 

Statement of Net Position 
June 3 0, 2022 

Receivables (net of allowance of uncollectibles) 
Due from other funds 
Restricted cash, customer deposits 
Prepaid items 
Utility, plant and equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Right-of-use asset 
Accumulated amortization: right of use asset 

Total assets 

Defen·ed Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabi lities 
Compensated absences 
Payable from restricted assets -

Customers' deposits 
Non-current liabilities 

Due within one year: 
Lease liability 

Due in more than one year 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 
Lease liability 
Total lic1bilities 

Deferred lnfiows of Resources: 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 

Net Posit ion: 
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Business-Type 
Enterprise fund 

$ 87,941 
462,289 

73,956 

351,180 

30,685 

18,156,505 
(12,606,812) 

!23,009 

(28,190) 

6,650,563 

150,052 

77,677 

115,652 
14,642 

413,555 

34,059 

5,145 
554,937 

56,61 I 
1,272,278 

260,023 

5,549,693 

(281,379) 
$ 5,268,314 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial stc1tements. 
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CITY OF EUNlCE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Business-Ty pe 

Enterprise f< und 

Operating revenues: 

Charges for serv ices $ 2,881,662 

Other billings 10 customers 48,583 

Total operating revenues 2,930,245 

Operating expenses: 

Payroll and related benefits 522,508 

Natural gas purchases l ,053,99 1 

Supplies and materials I 93 ,625 

Repairs and maintenance 822,617 

Office expenses 42,044 

Pro fessional fees 29.369 

Insurance l 79,884 

Depreciation 372,598 

Rad debts 8,739 

Permits 33,742 

Utilities and telephone 243,068 

Arnorti w tion expense- right of use :=isset 28,190 

Interest expense 4,24 1 
Miscellaneous 82,017 

Total opert1ting expenses 3,6 16,633 

Operating income (expense) (686,388) 

Nonoperat ing revenue (expenses): 

Interest earned on inveslments 2,890 

Nonernployer pension contribution 20,247 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense~) 23, lJ 7 

Income before operating transfers (663,25 1) 

Operating transfers: 
Operating transfers in l, 175,674 

Operating transfers out (602, \ 78} 
Total opera1ing transfers 573,496 

Change in net position (89,755) 

Net position. beginning 5,358,069 

Net position. ending $ S,268,314 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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C!TY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30. 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to supplies 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash nows from noncapilal financing activities: 
Nonernployer pension contribution 
Transfers from other funds 
Transfers to other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Proceeds from meter derosits 
Lease proceeds 
Payments of right to use leased asset 
Acquisition of properly, plant and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by car,i1al and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equi valcnts 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ye<1r 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Business-Type 
Activities-Enterprise 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

2,820,907 
(2,678, l 90) 

(676,797) 
(534,080) 

20,247 
1,175,674 
(602,178) 
593,743 

7,065 
!23,009 
(32,339) 

(179,009) 
(81,274) 

2,890 
2,890 

(18,721) 

457,842 

439,121 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30. 2022 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconci le operating income to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization-right of use asset 

Changes in current assets and liabilities: 
([ncrease) decrease in receivables (net) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payabk 
Increase (decrease) in accrued li abi lities 
Increase (decrease) in net pension I iabi Ii ty 

Net cash used by operating activities 

Reconciliation of cash und cash equivalents per the statement 
of cash tlows to the statement of net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year -
Cash - unrestricted 
Cash - restricted 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year -
Cash - unrestricted 
Cash - restricted 

Total cash and cash equiva lents 

Net increase (decrease) 

Business-Type 
Activities-Enterprise 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(686,388) 

372,598 
28,190 

(109,338) 

2,060 
13,087 
37,540 

(19l,829) 

(534,080) 

117,038 

340,804 
457,842 

87,941 

351,180 

439,121 

( 18,721) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY or EUN ICE, L,OUISIANA 
r. id uc iary rund 

Statement offiduciary Net Position 
June 30, 2022 

Cuslodial Funds 
Inmate Tnist Police Evidence 

Account Account Total 

Assets 

Cash $ 26,652 $ 43,184 $69,836 
Inventory 1,100 I, 100 

Total assets 27,752 43,184 70,936 

l ,iabilitics 
Due to local governn~nts 43,002 43,002 
Inmate payable 580 580 

Total liabilities 580 43,002 43,582 

Net position 

Reshicted for: 
Evidence return 182 27,354 
Inmate deposits 27, 172 

Total net position $ 27. 172 $ 182 $27,354 

T he accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Piduciary rund 

Statenient of Changes in Fiduciaiy Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Custodial Flmds 
(nm.He Trust Police Evidence 

Accow11 Account 

Additions 
Contributions 

Evidence $ $ 4,930 $ 

Inmate deposits 26,583 
Total contributions 26,583 4,930 

Investment earnings 
1nterest 182 

Total investment earnings 182 

Total additionc; 26,583 5,112 

Deductions 
Return of evidence 4,930 
Inmate withdrawals 23,453 

Total deductions 23,453 4,930 

Net increase (decrease) in fidl1ciary 

net position 3,130 l 82 

Net position, beginning 24,042 

Net position, ending $ 27,172 $ 182 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Total 

4,930 
26,583 
31,5 1 J 

182 
182 

31,695 

4,930 
23,453 
28,383 

3,312 

24,042 

27,354 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOlJISlANA 

Notes to financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY or SlGNIFJCANTACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Eunice was incorporated in 1909 under the Lawrason Act, and is administered under the 
Mayor and Board of Aldermen fonn of government. The accounting and reporting policies oft he City 
of Eunice confonn to Uni1ed States general ly accepted accounting principles as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and fi nancial reporting principles. Such accounting 
and reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:513 and 
to the guides set forth in the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide and to the industry 
audit gu ide, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units, published by the American Institute of 
Certified Publ ic Accountants. 

The fo llowing is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

Reporting Entitv 

In evaluating how to define the City for tinancial reporting purposes, management has considered all 
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity 
was made by applying the criteria set forth in G;\f\P. The basic, but not the only, criterion for 
including c1 potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body 's ability to 
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestcition of this ability is financial 
interdependency. Other manifestations or L11e abi I ity to exercise oversight responsibility include, but 
are not limited to, the selection or governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion used to 
evaluate potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity is the existence of special 
financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. 

Based on the foregoing cri teria, the fo llowing governmental organizations are not considered part of 
the City because they are not material in relation to the financial statement taken as a whole and are 
thus excluded from the accompanying fi nancial statements fo r the reasons noted: 

The Eunice City Court cind City Marshall are operated under the directorship of the Eunice City 
Judge and Marshall who are elected public officials. Revenues cire derived from court costs and 
the City cannot significantly influence operations nor does it have responsibi lity for fiscal 
management. A copy of the financial statements can be obtained from the City of Eunice, 
Louisiana. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISlANJ\ 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued) 

The municipality's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the board of the 
Housing Authority of Eunice, Louisiana. This agency is considered to be a related organization 
since the municipality appoints the governing board but is not financially accountable for the 
organization. A copy of the financial statements can be obtained from the Eunice Housing 
Authority, P.O. Box 224, Eunice, LA 70535. 

Bas is of Presentation 

Government - Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the non-fiduciary 
activities of the City of Eunice, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the 
reporting entity. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are ti nanced through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
nonexchange revenues. Rusiness-type activ ities are fi nanced in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties fo r goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues fo r 
the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City·s governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function. Program 
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the rec ipients of goods and services offered by the 
programs, and (b) requirements of a pa11 icular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including al I laxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund financial Statements 

The accounts of the City of Eunice are organized on the b1:1sis of funds each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregat ing transactions relating to certain government functions or 
act ivi ties. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate. 

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose 
for which spending activities are controlled. The various funds me grouped in the financial statements 
in this report, into seven generic fund tyres and three broad fund categories. The emphasis on fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise [unds, each displayed in a separate 
column. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the 
fo llowing criteria: 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISI/\NA 

Notes 10 Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF S!GNl f-'!CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues. or expenditures/expenses or that individual governmen1al or 
enterprise fund are at least IO percent o f the corresponding total for al I funds of that category 
or type; and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/exrense of the individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percen1 of the corresponding tolal for all governmental and 
enterprise funds combined 

The major funds of the City arc described below: 

Governmental funds -

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those requ ired to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund and St. I .andrv & Acadia Parish Fire District 

Special revenues funds are used to account for 1 he proceeds of speci fi e revenue sources ( other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes. 

Additionally, the City reports the fol lowing fund types: 

Other Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenues funds are used to account for the proceeds of speci fie revenue sources ( other than 
expendable trusts or major car,ital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purvoses. 

Fiduciarv Funds 

Custodial f-unds 

These funds are used to account fo r assets held by the City as an agent fo r individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. Custodial funds are used to report activities 
can-ied ou1 exclusively for the benefit of those outside of the government. The City operates the 
following ct1stodial funds. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to r-inancial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNlrICf\NT ACCOUNlJNG POLICIES (Continued) 

Police Oepa11menl Evidence-The fund accounts for the assets seized by the Ci ty of Eunice Police 
Department. 
Inmate Trust Account- The fund accounts for the deposits and withdrawals of inmate funds for use 
in the commissary. 

Proprietary runds 

Enterprise Fund 

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterpri ses -where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a 
continuing basis to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purposes. The City of Eunice's enterprise fund is the utility fund. It 
accounts for the provision of gas and sewer services to residents of the City. 

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is the term used to describe ''which" transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 

Measurement r ocus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined 
in item b. below. 

In the fi.ind financial statements, the ·'current linancial resources" measurement focus or the '•economic 
resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utili ze a ·'current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current 
financial assets and liabi lities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating 
statements present sources and uses o f avai lable spendable financial resources during a given 
period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources 
al the end of the period. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Noles to financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNlrJCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an ''economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting 
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net 
position ( or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether 
current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is 
classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statements of activities, both goveml)lental and 
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is 
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resul ting 
from exchange and exchange-l ike transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when 
they become measurable and available as net current assets. Sales taxes are considered "measurable'' 
when collected by the collection agency and are recognized as revenue at that time. Ad valorern taxes 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are billed. Pees and non tax revenues are 
recognized when received. Grants from other governments arc recognized when qualifying 
expenditures are incurred. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and 
use taxes, franchise taxes, and grant funds. Available means co llectible wi thin the current period or 
soon enough thereafter Lo pay current liabilities, usually 60 days. Those revenues susceptible to 
accrual are property taxes, grant revenues and interest revenue. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avai lable for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accnial basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred except that accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay are not accrued and 
principal and interest on general long-term debt are recognized when due. Purchases of various 
operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased. 

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are 
recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Bad debts are written off when accounts become worthless. 

Transters between funds that are not expected lo be repaid are accounted for as other financing sources 
(uses). 
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C[TY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY Of- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Budgets 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general and special revenue funds as required by law. All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all capital 
project funds; therefore, they arc not included in this report. 

Encumbrances are not recorded in the financial slaternents. 

The budget presented is as amended by the Board or J\lderrnen. Expenditures may not legally exceed 
budgeted appropriations by more than 5% al the individual fund level. 

Program Revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Acllvities are derived directly from the program itself 
or from parties outside the City's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost 
of the function to be financed from the City's general revenues. 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses 

The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other functions are not allocated to 
those functions, but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense is 
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on 
general long-tenn debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported sepmately on the Statement of 
Activities. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. Investments include certificates of deposit and time 
deposits. The bank balance of cash and investments is covered by federal depository insurance or by 
collateral in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually 
acceptable to both parties. 

Short-Tenn I nterfund Receivable/Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds. These 
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due 10 other funds'' on the 
balance sheet. lnterfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are 
eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISlANA 

Notes to r-inancial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Prepaid Items 

Payments made for services that wil I benefit periods beyond June 30, 2022, are recorded as prepaid 
items. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include properly, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. All 
purchased fixed assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost. The amoun ts of estimated costs 
are immaterial to these financial statements. Donated fixed assets are stated at thei r fair market value 
on the date donated. The City maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital 
assets. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement o f 
activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net posi tion. Depreciation is 
provided over the assets' estimated useful li ves using the straight-line method of depreciation. The 
range of estimated useful li ves by type of assets is as follows: 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Utility system and improvements 

40 years 
7 years 
S years 

25-50 years 

Depreciation of buildings, equipment and vehicles in the proprietary fund types is comruted using the 
s1raight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Gas system 
Sewerage system 

Meters & regulators 
Vehicle & other equipment 

Compensated Absences 

67 years 
40-67 years 

25 years 
4-10 years 

Vested compensatory time that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. 
Vested compensatory time of the proprietary fund is recorded as an expense and liability of that fund 
as the benefits accrue to employees. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Standards No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting 
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. Vacation time is allowed January l st and lapse 
Dec em her 3 I "1 if not used. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes lo financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF S!GNJ Fl CANT ACCOUNTING POU CIES (Continued) 

Long-Tenn Debi 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental 
fund operations or proprietary fond operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide 
or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and bl1siness-type resources is reported as 
liabilities in the governmenl-\vide statements. The long-tern, debt consists primarily of the net pension 
liabil ity. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. 
The debt proceeds are rerorted as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest 
reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the same in the fund 
statements as it is in the government-wide slalernenls. 

Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed m three 
components: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists or cnrital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mo1igages, notes, or other boiTowing that are attributable lo the acquisition, constrnction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - Consist of net posit ion with constraints placed on the use either by (I) 
external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations o f other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net posi tion that do not meet the definition of"restricted" 
or •·invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

1 n the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amount for five classifications 
of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. The nonspendable 
fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form -prepaid items or inventories; or (b) leg<1lly orcontr<1ctually required to be maintained 
intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining for classifications: restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, l,OUfSIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SlGNlrJCANT ACCOLJNTJNG POLIC IES (Continued) 

a. Restricted fund balance. This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either 
(a) externally by creditors, grant ors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (h) imposed by law tluough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

b. Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the city counci I - the government's 
highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the city council removes the specified use by taking the same type of 
action imposing the commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the 
extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying 
those contractual requ irements. 

c. Assigned fund balance. This classification reflects the amoL1nts constrained by the city's 
'•intent" to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The city 
council and the city manager have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. Assigned fund balances inclL1de all remaining amounts (except negat ive balances) that 
are reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund. that are not classified as 
nonspeodable and are neither restricted nor commitled. 

d. Unassigned fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classi tication for the General r-und. 
It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance 
is available, the City considers restricted funds 10 have been spent first. When an expenditure is 
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are avai lable, the City considers 
the amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City lrns provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment 
actions. 

Revenues. Expenditure, and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services 
and producing and de livering goods and/or services. l t also includes all revenues and expenses not 
related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non operating revenues and expenses. 
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CITY OF ElJN ICF, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNlf-;ICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (Conlinued) 

Expenditures / Expenses 

[n the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by funct ion for both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, expendi tures are classified as follows: 

Governmental Funds - By Character 
Proprietary fund - By Operaling and Nonopcrating 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources while 
proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

lntcrfund Transactions 

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund expenditure/expense initially made from it that 
are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund 
and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

Al I other interfund transactions, except quasi-ex ternal 1ransactions and reimbursements, are repo11ed as 
transfers. Nonrecurring or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity 
transfers. Al l other interfund transrers are reported as operating transfers. 

For purposes of the statement of acti vities, all in terfund transfers between individual governmental 
funds have been eliminated. 

Statement of Cash flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash Dows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

Subsequent Events 

FASB issued SFAS No 165, Subsequent Events (ASC 855) establishes genera l standards for 
accounting for and discloslires o[ events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial 
statements are issued or are available to be issued. We have evaluated events subsequent to the balance 
sheel through the date the fi nancial statements were ava ilable to be issued. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISl;\NA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF S(GNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Recentlv Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

GAS 13 Statement No. 87, "Leases" increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by 
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabi Ii ties for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as in flows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. h establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational 
principle that leases are financings of the right to usc an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a 
lessee is required 10 recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is 
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred intlow of resources, thereby enhancing the 
relevance and consistency of infonnation about governments' leasing activities. The requirements of 
this Statement are effecti ve for fiscal years beginning June l 5, 202 1. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, 
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities or leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases. In notes 6 and 7, prior period balances of lease liabi lities and lease assets, 
respectively, were restated. There was no effect on beginning net position. Further information on 
GASI3 87 is presented in Note 7. 

Pension Plans 

The City is a part icipating employer in multiple pension plans as described in Note 8. for purposes of 
measuring the Net Pension Liability, defeJTed outflows or resources and deferred in nows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Funds, 
and additions to/deductions from the Fund's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by the retirement system. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) arc recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair value within the Plans. 

NOTE 2 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS 

The City fo llows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data re0ected in these financial 
statements: 

The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Council no later 
than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is availuble for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

J\ public hearing is held on the proposed budget al least ten days after publication or the call for 
the hearing. 
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CITY OF EUNICI:~, LOUISIANA 

Notes to r inancial Statements 

NOTE 2 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS (Continued) 

After the holding of the public hearing and completion of nil action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of hinds from one department, program or 
function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from re venues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval of the Counci I. 

Budgets for all funds arc adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles of the United States of' America. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as 
amended from time to time by the Board of Aldennen. The budget was amended prior to the 
fiscal year end June 30, 2022. 

NOTE 3 CASH ANO INTEREST-BEARTNG DEPOSITS 

The cash and cash equivalents of the City of Eunice, Louisiana arc subject to the following risk: 

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
derository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits. Under state law, these 
derosils (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fi scal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the c1mount on deposi t with the fiscal agent. These 
securities are held in the name of the pledging fi scal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Rev ised Statute 39: 1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within l O days of being 
notified by the City that the fi scal agent bank has fai led to pay deposited funds upon demand. Fu11her, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39: l 224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be 
held in the City's name. 

At June 30, 2022, the City had cash, book balances and interest-bearing deposits as follows: 

Demand deposi ts/savings 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 3 CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS (Continued) 

Deposit balances (bank balance) at June 30; 2022, are secured as follows. 

Bank balances 

Federal deposit insurance 
Pledged securities (Category 3) 

Total 

Excess (Shortage) 

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES 

Interest 
Bearin° Q 

$ 8,330,153 

250,000 
8,760, 145 

9,010,145 

$ 679,992 

Non-interest 
Bearing 

$ 27,567 

250,000 

250,000 

$ 222,433 

Receivables at June 30; 2022 in the fund financial statements consist of the fo llowing: 

Govemmenta I Enterpr[se Total 

Taxes $ 9,655 $ $ 9,655 

Accow,ts 415,985 581,446 997,431 

Gross rcceivab les 425,640 58 1,446 1,007,086 

Less allowance fot 
Lu1collectibles 9,655 119,157 128,8 12 

Net total receivables $ 415,985 $462,289 $ 878,274 

Accounts receivables in the Enterprise Fund consist of billed and unbilled receivables relating to gas 
and sewerage services. Gas accounts receivable are divided into two billing cycles. Cycle l is billed 
for meters read from lhe I~, through the 15th and Cycle 2 is billed for melers read the 16'11 through 2411

'. 

Billed receivables at .June 30, 2022 were $377,741 and unbilled receivables were $203,705. 

Ad valorern taxes auach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I of each year. Taxes are 
levied by the City in September or October and are actually bil led to the taxpayer in November. Billed 
taxes become delinquent on Jamrnry I or the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are 
budgeted in the year billed. 
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NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES (Continued) 

The City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax 
assessors of St. Landry Parish and Acadia Parish. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 taxes ot' 11.25 mills \Vere levied on properly with an assessed 
valuation totaling $66,654, I 00 and were dedicated as follows: 

General corporate tax 
Street maintenance 

Millage 
6.77 mills 
4.78 mills 

11 55 

Duration 
Permanent 
2012-2021 

Total taxes levied were $784,519. Taxes receivable, net of allowance for uncol\ectibles, at June 30, 
2022 were $9,655. 

NOTE 5 FLOWS OF FUNDS - RESTRICTIONS ON USE - SALES TAX REVENUES 

The City of Eunice levies a 2.45% sales and use tax dedicated as follows: 

Proceeds of the I% sales and use tax levied in 1978 are dedicated as follows: 

Under the terms of the sales tax ordinance, <1ll monies collected are deposited into a separate 
account. 

Monies remaining in the sales tax fund after payment of collection expenses may be used for 
providing additional general fund revenues and for the construction, operations and 
maintenance of capital improvements. 

This is a 25 year sales and use tax that was renewed for an additional 25 years and will expire 
on December J l, 2028. 

Proceeds of the I% sales and use tax levied in 1962 are dedica1ed as follows: 

Opening, constructing, paving, resurfacing and improving streets, sidewalks and bridges; 
constructing and purchasing street lighting facilities; constructing and improving drains, 
drainage canals and subsurface draim1ge; constructing and purchasing fire department 
stations and equiprnen1; constructing and purchasing police department stations and 
equipment; constructing and purchasing garbage disposal and health and sanitation 
equipment; constructing public buildings; purchasing, constructing and improving public 
parks and recreational facilities and acquiring the necessary equipment and furnishings 
therefore; purchasing equipment for ci vi I defense; constructing, acquiring or improving any 
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NOTE 5 FLOWS OF FUNDS - RESTRICTIONS ON US E - SALES TAX REVENUES (Continued) 

work or permanent public improvement ; and purchas ing and acquiring all equipment and 
furnishing for public works, buildings, improvements and facilities. 

Providing funds, not to exceed ten percent ( l 0%) of the proceeds of said tax for such year, 
to defray costs of operating and mainiaining a public li brary. 

Providing funds, not to exceed ten percent ( I 0%) of the proceeds of said tax for such year, 
for the payment of salaries of municipal employees. 

In addition to the purposes previously approved, no\ more than 10% of such proceeds may 
be used in each fiscal year for general municipal purposes in the event that unbudgeted 
emergency expenses are incu1Ted by the City in that year. 

The l 962 sales and use tax is a permanent sales tax. 

Proceeds of the .2% sales and use tax levied in 1988 are dedicated as follows: 

Monies remaining in the sales tax fund may he used for constructing, acquiring, extending, 
improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewerage disposal facilities. 

The 1988 sales and use tax is a permanent sales tax. 

Proceeds of the .25% sales and use tax levied in 2019 are dedicated as follows: 

Providing funds for public safety salaries and related compensation. 

The 2019 sales and use wx is a penmrnent sales tax. 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City of Eunice for the year ended June 30, 
2022: 

(Restated) 
06/30/2021 Additions Retirements 06/30/2022 

Compensated absences payable $ 128,165 $ $ 26,813 $ 101,352 
Note payable 419,806 63,594 356,212 
Lease liability* 372,754 177,515 )00,569 449,700 
Net pension liability 9, I 09,423 3,455,286 5,654, 137 

$ l 0,030, 148 $ 177,5 15 $ 3,646,262 $ 6,561 ,40 I 

*Due to the implementation of GASB 87, Leases, the balance at June 30, 2021 is restated. 
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NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

The City entered into a financing agreement with lJ.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, 
Inc., on April 16, 2018, in the amount of $676,510, a t J .81% interest, for the purchase o(two fire 
trucks. 

Future payments as of June 30, 2022 arc as follows: 

Date Principal Interest To tal 

2023 $ 66,0 17 $ 13,571 $ 79,588 
2024 68,531 11 ,057 79,588 

2025 71,)43 8,445 79,588 

2026 72,549 7,039 79.588 

2027 77,972 1,6 16 79,588 

$356,212 $ 4 1,728 $397,940 
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NOTE 7 CAPITAL AND RIGHT TO us~ LEASED ASSETS 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, leases, 
requiring the recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously we(e 
classified as opern(ing leases. It establ ishes a single model fo r lease accounting based on the 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use lease assets. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liabi lity and an intangible right to use lease asset, and a lessor is 
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred in now o f resources, thereby enhancing the 
relevance and consistency of information about a governments' leasing activities. 

Capital and right 10 use leased asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 is as fo llows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capi1al assets not be ing deprec iated: 

Land 
Other capital assets: 

Buildings & recreation 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Total capital nssets 

Less accumulated deprecintion 
Buildings & recreation 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Right to use lease assets: 
Equ ipment 
Vehicles 
Total right to use lease assets 

Less accumulated amo1iizat ion 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Total accumulated amortization 

Governmental activities, capital and 
righ1 to use leased assets, net 

13alnnce 
06/30/2021 

(Resta1ed) 

$ 1,312,065 

)3,115,544 

7,068,095 

3,165,218 

3,322,985 

27,983,907 

7,828.724 
2,980,692 

2,935.213 

1,87 1,605 

15,616,234 

249,745 

249,745 

$ 12,617,418 
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Additions 

$ 46,600 

I 06,879 
1,245,5S 1 

263.6S6 

1,662,686 

240,533 

J 70.265 

134,775 
178,644 
924,217 

177,5 15 

177,515 

5,917 
62,436 
68,353 

$ 847,631 

Deletions 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
06/30/2022 

$ l ,358,665 

t 3,222,423 

8,3 13,646 

3,428,874 

3,322,985 
29,646,593 

8,069,257 

3,350,957 

3,069,988 

2,050,249 

16,540,451 

177,515 

249,745 
427,260 

5,9 17 

62,436 

68,353 

$ 13,465,049 
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Notes of Financial Statements 

NOTE 7 CAPITAL AND RIGHT Of< USE LEASED ASSETS (Continued) 

Balance 

06/30/2021 Balance 

( Resrnted) Add rt ions Deletions 06/30/2022 

Business-type activities: 
Capital <1ssets 11ot being depreciated: 

Construct ion in progress $ $ $ $ 

Other capital assets: 
Gas system 6,047,198 56,000 6,103,198 

Sewer system I l ,529,260 11 ,529,260 

Vehicles 52,870 52,870 

Equipment 471,177 471,177 

Total capital assets 18, I 00,505 56,000 18,156,505 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Gas system 3,593,868 95,268 3,689,136 

Sewer system 8,142,998 276,953 8,419,95 I 

Vehicles 106343 I 06,343 

Equipment 391,005 377 391,382 

Total accumulated depreciation 12,234,214 372,598 12,606,812 
Right to use lease assets: 

Vehicles 123,009 123,009 

Total right to use lease assets 123,009 123,009 
Less accumulated amonization 

Vehicles 28,190 28,190 

Total accumulated amonization 28,190 28,190 

Business type activities, capital and 
right to use leased assets, net $ 5,989,300 $ (344,788) $ $ 5,644,5 I 2 

Amortization of the right lo use leased assets is computed by the straight-line method over the 
estimated contract period including renewals. Amonization of the right to use leased assets totaled 
$96,543 for the year ended June JO, 2022 and is reported within depreciation/amortization under 
operating expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Exrcnses and Changes in Net Position. 

The City entered into a 5 year lease with Enterprise FM Trust for the use of vehicles. The term of 
the lease is from f<ebruary 14, 2020 through January 14, 2025. The lease rrovides for a monthly 
payment of $9,087. The implicit ra1c on the GASB 87, Leases transition dace was 2.59%. The 
following schedule summarizes the future principal and interest requirements for the leased vehicles 
at .IU!)C JQ, 2022. 
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NOTE 7 CAPITAL AND RIGHT OF USE LEASED ASSETS (Continued) 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2023 $ I 03,208 $ 5,842 $ I 09,050 
2024 105,916 3,134 I 09,050 

2025 63,062 12,772 75,834 
$272,186 $21,748 $293,934 

The City entered in lo a 63 month lease agreement with Lenovo f'inancial Services for the use of 
copy rnachine/prinlers on May l 1, 2022. The lease provides for a monthly payment of$3,857. The 
implicit rate on the GASB 87, Leases transition date was 12.5%. The following schedule 
summarizes the future principal and interest requirements for the leased machines at June 30, 2022. 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2023 $ 24,859 $21,423 $ 46,282 
2024 29,506 16,776 46,282 
2025 33,413 12,869 46,282 
2026 37,838 8,444 46,282 

2027 42,848 3,434 46,282 
2028 9,050 90 9,140 

$ 177,5 l 4 $62,946 $ 231,4)0 

The following schedule summarizes the cumulative future principal and interest requirements 
for leases. 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2023 $128,067 $27,265 $155,332 
2024 $135,422 $19,910 $155,332 
2025 $ 96,475 $25,641 $122,116 
2026 37,838 8,444 46,282 

2027 42,848 3,434 46,282 
2028 9,050 90 9,140 

$449,700 $84,694 $534,484 

38 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes of Financial Statements 

NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS 

STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

Substantially all city employees, except tiremen, policemen and the judge are members of the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System or Louisiana (MERS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), 
pub I ic employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board o f trustees. 
The MERS is composed of two distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit 
provisions. All members participate in Plan A. 

Eligibilitv Requirements 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the 
ernployee is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid 
joinlly by a participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in the System with 
exceptions as outlined in the statutes. 

/\ny person eligible for membership whose first employment rnaking him eligible for membership in 
the System occurred on or after .January 1, 2013 shall become a member of the M ERS Plan A Tier 2 or 
MERS Plan H Tier 2 of the System as a condition of employmenl. 

Retirement Benefits 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 356 of the 1954 regular session and amended by LRS 
11 : 1756- l I: l 785. The fol lowing brief description of the plan and its benefits is provided for general 
information purposes only. Pa11icipants should refer to the appropriate statuses for more complete 
infonnation. 

Any member of Plan A who commenced participation in the System prior to January I, 201 3 can retire 
providing he meets one of the following criteria: 

l. Any age with twenty-five (25) or more years of creditable service. 

2. Age 60 wi th a minimum of ten ( l 0) years of creditable service. 
3. Any age wi th 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an 

actuarially reduced early benefit. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member o f Plan A shall consist of 
an amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly Gtverage final compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the 
highest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if service was intem.1pted. However, under certain 
conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

39 



CITY or EUN ICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes o f f-'inancial St1-1tements 

NOTE 8 PENSJON AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Any member of Plan A Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if he meets one of the fo llowing 
requirements: 

I. Age 67 with seven (7) years of credi table service. 
2. Age 62 with ten ( I 0) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) yea rs of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditahle service, exclusive of milita1y service 

and unused annual sick leave. 

Survivor Benefits 

Upon death of any member of Plan A with tive (5) or more years of creditable service, not eligible for 
retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children as outlined in the 
statutes. 

Any member or Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the 
surviving spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon rroper application and are 
paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Any member of Plan A or Plan B who had not withdrawn their accumulnted contributions and had at 
least twenty years o f service credit at time of death, surviving spouse sha ll receive benefits for as long 
as he/she lives as outlined in the statutes. 

Drop Benefits 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan 
A or B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) 
for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer 
contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that 
would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement 
allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. Inte rest is earned when the member has completed DROP 
participation. Interest earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as 
DROP funds for the period. ln addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until 
employment which made them eligible to become members or the System has been terminated for at 
least one full year. 

Upon termination or employment prior to. or at the end of the specified period of participation, a 
participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the 
payments into the account, a trne annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other 
method of payment if approved by the board of trustees. If a participant dies during the participation in 
the DROP, a lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if 
none, to his estate. If employment is no! terminated al the end of the three years, payments into the 
DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership in the System. 
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NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIR.Eiv!ENT PLANS (Continued) 

Disabi litv Benefits 

For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five 
years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been otlicially certified as 
disabled by the State Medical Disability 13oard. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of 
Plan A shall be paid a disability benefit equal lo the lesser of forty-five percent of his final average 
compensation or three percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable 
service, whichever is greater, or an amount t::qual to three percent of the member's final average 
compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service projected lo his earliest normal retirement. 

Cost of Li vi ng Increases 

The System is authorized under state law to grant ii cost of living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each 
full calendar year since re tirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from 
investment income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows the System to grant additional 
cost ofliving increases 10 all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of 
the benefit being received on October l, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after 
tha1 date. 

Dererred C3enefits 

The Plans provide for deferred benefits for members who tenninate before being eligible for 
retirement. Once the n1ember reaches the appropria1e age for retirement, benefits become payable. 
Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of wi thdrawal. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 9.50 percent of their salaries lo 
the System. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11 :756- I I: 1785, the employer contributions 
are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The currenl actuaria lly determined rate is 29.50 percent of annual 
covered payroll. The City's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 
2022 and 2021 were $524,124 and $474,568, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each 
year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial repent that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System, 7937 Office Park Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or 
by calling (225) 925-4810. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, an<l Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the City reported a liability or $2,305,546 [or its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the MERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June JO, 2021 and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of chat dace. The Ci ty's proportion or the net pension liabi lity was based on a projection of 
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NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

the City's long-term share or contributions 10 the MERS pens ion plan relati ve to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021 , the City's 
proportion was 0.828885%. which was a decrease of 0.015165% from its proportion measurt d as of 
June 30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized net pension expense of $(41) including 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 

Non•employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax 
is considered support from a non•contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial s tudy. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City 
recognized $61,851 of no n-employer contribu1ion revenue. 

At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Diilerences between expected 
and actual experience 

Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 

Changes in proportion and di!lerences 
between employer contributions and 
proponionatc share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 
To1<1l 

Deterred Outllows Deferred Inflows 

$ 

$ 

of Resources of Resow-ces 

831 
84,254 

524,124 
609,209 

$ 

$ 

(26,364) 

(649,590) 

(184,526) 

(860,480) 

The C ity reported a to tal of $524, I 24 as deferred out flow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period o f June 30, 2022, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. 
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NOTE. 8 PENSION AND RETIREMCNT PLANS (Conlinucd) 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions wi ll be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June JO: 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Total 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

MERS 
$ (180,391) 

( 137,884) 

( 167,469) 

(248,726) 
$ (734,470) 

The components of the net pension liability of the City as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as fo llows: 

Total Pension Liability 
Plan FiduciHT)' Net Position 

Total Net Pension Liability 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

as a% ofthe Total Pension 
Liability 
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2022 

PLAN A 
$ I 0,393;272 

(8,087,726) 
$ 2,305,546 

77.82% 

2021 
PLAN A 

$ I 0,285,736 
(6,636,563) 

$ 3,649, 173 

64.52% 
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NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PL.ANS (Cont inued) 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the tota l pension liabi lity as 
of June 30, 202 l are as fol low: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Actual Assumptions: 
Investment rate of return 

lntlation rate 

Salary increases, inlcuding 
inflation and merit increases: 

June 30, 202 1 

Entry Age Normal 

6.85%. net of investment expense 

2.50% 

- I to 4 years of service 6.4% - Plan A 
-More than 4 years of service 4 .5% - Plan A 

Annuitant and beneficiary PubG-2010(0) Healthy Retiree Table 
mortal ity set equal to 120% for males and females, 

each adjusted using hteir respecive 

Emplooyee mortality 

Disabled lives mortal ity 

male and female MP2018 scales. 

PubG-201 O(B} Employee Table set equal 
to 120% for males and females, each 
adjusted using their respective male and 
female M P20 I 8 scales. 

PubNS-20 10(0) Disabled Retiree Table set 
equal to 120% for males and females wilh the 
full generational MP20 l8 scale. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension rlan investments was detennined using a building­
block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentc1ge and by adding expec1ed inflation of2.5% and an 
adjustn1en1 for the effect of rebalancing/diversificalion. The resulting expected long-term rate of return 
was 6.95% for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
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NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the fo llowing table: 

Asset Class 
Public equity 
Public fixed income 
Alternatives 
Totals 

lnflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

Target Asset 
Allocation 

53% 

J8% 

9% 
100% 

Long-Tenn Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

ofRen1m 
2.31% 

1.65% 

0.39% 

4.35% 

2.60% 

6.95% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabil ity was 6.85%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contdbution rates and that contributions from panicipating employers will be made at the 
actuarially detennined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net posi tion was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liabil ity. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The fol lowing presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.85%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rate as of June 30, 2022: 

Net Pension Liability 

1% 

Decrease 
5.85% 

$ J,414,632 

Changes in Discount Rate 
Plan J\ 
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Cw,-ent 
Discow1t Rate 

6.85% 

$ 2,305,546 

1% 

Increase 
7.85% 

$ 1,368,770 
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NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Changes in Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liabi lity for the year ended .lune 30, 2021 were recognized in the current 
reporting period except as follows: 

Differences between Expec1ed and Actual Hxperience: 

The differences between expected and ac!Ual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors 
in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension benefit using the straight­
line amortizHtion method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service 
lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference between 
expected and actual experience resulted in a deferred infiow of resources as of June 30, 2021 in the 
amount of $26,364. 

D(/Jerences between f'rojecled and 1/ctuai lnvestme/11 Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period. The difference between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred outflow 
of resources as of June 30, 2021 in the amount or $0. 

Changes in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average or the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions - Proportionate Share 

Di ffcrences between contributions remilled lo the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period 
equal lo the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that me provided with a 
pension through the pension plan. 
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Municipal Police Emplovccs' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the adrninistrntor of a cost-sharing multiple­
employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full -1irne police officer employed by a 
municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory 
criteria. The System provides retirement benelits for municipal police officers. The project ions of benefit 
payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current 
active and inactive employees th rough the System in accordance with benefit terms and any additional 
legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement dale. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11 :221 111 :2233. The 
following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general infonnation 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership Prior to Januarv I, 2013 

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the Sy stern and has 25 years of 
creditable service al any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable 
service and is age 55. A member is e ligible for early retirement at)er he has been a member of the System 
for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefi t rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation (average monthly earnings 
during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of 
years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final sa lary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and rninor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from 
forty 10 sixty percent of the member's average tinal compensation for the surviving spouse. rn addition, 
each child under age eighteen receives benefi ts equal to ten percent of the member's average final 
compensation or $200.00 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 20 13 

Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disabi liLy and survivor benefits are based on 
Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under lhe Hazardous Duly sub plan, a member is 
eligible for regular relirernenl after he has been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable 
service at any age or has 12 years of c reditable service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub 
plan, a memher is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years or creditable service at age 55, or l O years of creditable 
service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement a~cr he has been a 
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member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, wi1h an acluaric11ly reduced benefit 
from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and two and a 
half percent, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable service 
not to exceed I 00% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses 
and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from twenty-five to 
fifty-five percent of the member' s average final compensation for the surviving spouse. [n addition, each 
child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever 
is greater. If deceased member had less than ten years or service, beneficiary ,viii receive a refi.md of 
employee contributions only. 

Cost of Living Adjus1me nts 

The Board of Trustees is authorized lo provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on the amount 
of the current regular retirement, disabi I ity, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given 
year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's original 
benefit, to al I regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the 
cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary sha ll be eligible to receive a cost-of-l iving adjustment until 
benefits have been received at least one fu ll fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when authorized, 
shall not be effective until tl1e lapse ofat least one-half of the fiscal year. 

Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment unti I they reach regular 
retirement age. A COLA may only by granted if funds are available in excess of normal requirements, as 
determined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

A member is eligible lo elect to enter the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is eligible for 
regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the 
program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At the entry date into the DROP, 
the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP account is 
equal to the benefit computed under the retireinen1 plan elected by the participant at date of application. 
The durat ion of purt ic ipation in Che DROP is thirty six months or less. If employment is terminated atler 
1he rhree-year period the participan t may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If 
employment is not terminaicd, active contributing membership into the System shall resume and upon later 
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termination, he shall receive additional retirement bcnelit based on the additional service. For those eligible 
to enter DROP prior to January I, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination 
of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of 1he 
System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose money. For 
those e ligible to enter DROP subsequent to January I, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest 
based on the System's investrnent portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result 
in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment retu rn, the funds are transferred to a government money 
market account. 

Initial l3enefit Option Plan 

In I 999, the State Legislature authorized the System to cstabl ish an Initial Benefit Option program. Initial 
Benefit Option is available to members who are el igible for regular retirement and have not participated in 
DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 
months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is 
comruted on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. 

Employer Contributions 

Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but cannot be less than 
9% of the employees' earn able compensation excluding overtime but including state supplemental pay. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, total contributions clue from employers and employees were as follows: 

Members hired prior to l /1/2013 

1-Iuz.ardous Duty Members hired a Iler I / l /20 I 3 

Non Hazardous Duty Members hired after 1/1/2013 

Members whose carnable compensation is 
less than the poverty f,'Uidelines 

Contribution Rates 

Employee Employer Total 

10.00% 33.75% 43.75% 

10.00% 33.75% 43.75% 

8.00% 33.75% 41.75% 

7.50% 36.25% 43.75% 

The City 's contribut ions to the System for the years ending June 30, 2022 and 202 1 were $311,655 and 
$385,240, equal to the required contributions for the year. 
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The System issues an annual publicly available financjal report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza 13lvd. , Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809-701 7, or by calling (225)929-7411. 

Pension Liahilitics, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred In nows of 
Resources Rcl:"1tcd to Pensions 

At June 30, 202 1, the City reported a liability of$1,982,526 for its proro1iionate share of the net pension 
liability for the MPERS plan. The net pension liability was rncasur~d as of Jtine 30, 2021 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liabili ty was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City 's long­
lerm share of contributions to the MPERS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the City's proportion was 0.3 71918%, 
which was a increase of 0.049522% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recogn ized pension expense of $96,188. 

Non-emplover contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an 
actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City recognized $83,114 of 
non-employer contribution revenue. 
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At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflo .. vs Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected 
and aclual experience $ $ (6 1,056) 

Changes in assumptions 219,554 (56,553) 

Net difference between projected 
and aclual earnings on pension 
plan investments 3 15,927 (925,684) 

Changes in proportion and differences 
be1ween employer contributions and 
proportionate share or contributions 23,086 (205,058) 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement dale 311,655 

Tomi $ 870,222 $ ( 1,248,35 I) 

The City reported a total of $311 ,655 as deferred oulflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent lo the measuremenl period of June 30, 202 1 which will be recognized as a reduction in 
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023 . 

Other arnortizable amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as fol lows: 

Year Ended Jw,e 30: 

2022 

2023 

2024 

2025 

Tot.al 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

MPERS 
$ (188,585) 

( 133,825) 

(7 1,373) 

(318,919) 

$ (712,702) 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to 
be provided through the pension plan lo current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those 
employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 
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The components of the net pension liability of the City as or June JO, 2022 are as follows: 

Measurement Date 
2021 2020 

Total Pension Liability $ 12,459,359 $ I 0,255,333 

Plan fiduciary Net Position ( 10,476,833) (7,275,643) 

Total Collective Net Pension Liability $ 1,982,526 $ 2,979,690 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the assumptions used in the 
June 30, 2021 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the resulls of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July 1, 2009 - June 30, 20 I 4. In cases where benefit structures were changed after the study 
period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 202 l are as follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

MrERS 
June 30, 2021 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

Expected remaining service lives 2020 - 4 years 
20 I 9 - 4 years 
2018 - 4 years 
2017 - 4 years 

lnvestment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment expense 

lnnation rate 2.50% 

Salary increases, Years of Service 
including inllation and merit I -2 

Above 2 
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Mortality 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

For ann uitants and beneficiaries, the Pub-20 I 0 
Public Retirement Plan Mortality Table fo r Safety 
Below-Median Healthy Retirees multiplied hy 
I ! 5% for males and 125% for females, each 
with lull generational projection using the MP2019 
scale was used. 

For disabled lives, the Pub-20 10 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees 
multiplied by I 05% for males and 11 5% for 
females, each \Vith full generational projection 
using the MP201 9 scale was used. 

For emloyees, the Pub-20 IO Public Ret irement 
Plans Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Emr,loyees multiplied by 11 5% for males ,rnd 125% 
for females, each with rull generational projec1ion 
using the MP20l 9 scale was used. 

The present value of future retirement benefi ts is 
based on benefits currently being pa id by the 
System and includes previously granted cost-of­
li ving increases. The present values do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 
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The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major <.1sset class included in the 
System's target allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Equity 

Fixed Income 
Alternative 
Other 

Target 

Allocation 

55.50% 

30.50% 
}4.00% 

0.00% 

June 30, 2021 

Long Tenn 
E>. .. 1Jected 

Portfolio Real 
Rate of Re tum 

3.47% 
0.59% 

1.02% 

0.00% 
Totals 100.00% 5.08% 

2.22% Inflation 

Expected Nominal Return 7.30% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabllity was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the di scount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from part icipating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be avai lable to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
or return on pension plan in vestments was applied to al I periods of projected benefit payments to detem,i ne 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Ralc 

The following presents the net pension I iabi I ity of the partici paling employers calculated using the discount 
rate of 6.750%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.750% or one percentage point higher 7.750% than the 
current rate as of June 30, 2021. 

Net Pension Liability $ 

1% 

Decrease 
5.750% 
3,455,230 
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Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended .lune 30, 2021 were recognized in the current 
reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Difference.1· he/ween Expected and Actual Experience· 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in 
the measurement of the total pension liabilily were recognized as pension expense using the straight-line 
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all 
employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

D{(ferences between Projected and Actuol lnvestmenr Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period. 

Changes nf Assumptions or Other Inputs. 

The changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors were recognized in pension 
expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided wi th pensions through the pension plan. 

Change in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability and collect ive 
deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer' s pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average or the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions - Proportionntc Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight line amortization method over a close<l period 
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a 
pension through the pension plan. 
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Firefighters' Retirement System 

Plan Description 

The System is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. The 
System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for their members. 

The projections of benefit payments in the calculation o!'the total pension liabi lity includes all benefits to 
be provided to current active and inactive employees 1hrough the System in accordance with benefit tem1s 
and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within ;\ct 434 of 1979 and amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes 
(R.S.) I I :2251 - 11 :2272. The following is a brief description oft he plan and its benefits and is provided 
for general information purposes only. Panicipants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Eligibil ity Requirements 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in R.S. I l :2252 on and after January I, 1980, shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. Membership in the System is a condition of 
employment 

for any tull-1ime lirefighters (or any person in a position as defined in the municipal fire and police civil 
service system) who earn at least $375 per month and arc employed by any municipality, parish, or fire 
prolection district of the State of Louisiana in addit ion to employees or the Firefighters' Retirement 
System. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of the System unless the person 
becomes a member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for membership 
before the applicant attained the age of 50. No rerson who has not attained the age of 18 years shall 
become a member of the System. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained 
basically for public officers and employees oflhe state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is 
receiving reti rement benefits therefrom may become a member of this System, prov(ded the person meets 
all other requiremenls fo r membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan from 
which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or for 
any other purpose in order to allain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System. 
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Retirement Benefits 

Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who have 12 years of 
service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service al any ae are entitled to annual pension benefits 
equal to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay 
rnul liplied by their total years of service, not to exceed I 00%. Employees may elect 10 receive their 
pension benefi ts in the form of a joint and survivor annuity . 

If employees terminate before rendering l 2 years of service, they fo rfeit the right to receive the portion of 
their accumulated plan benefi ts allributable to their employer' s contributions. 

Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form or a monthly annuity. An employee may elect 
an unreduced benefit or any of seven options al retirement. 

Sec R.S. 11 :2256(A) for additional details on retirement benefits. 

Disability Benefits 

A member who acquires a disabil ity, and who files for disabili ty benefits whi!e in service, and who upon 
medical examination and cert ification as provided for in Title 11, is fo L1nd to have a total disabil ity solely 
as the result or injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties> or for any cause, provided the 
member has at least live years of creditable service and provided that the disabi lity was incuffed while the 
member was an active contributing member in active service, shall be entitled to disabil ity benefits under 
the provisions of R.S. 11 :2258(8). 

Death Benefits 

Benefits shall be payable to the surviving el igible spouse or designated beneficia1y of a deceased member 
as specified in R.S. 11 :2256(8) & (C). 

Deferred Ret irement Option Plan 

After co,npleting 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a member may elect to 
participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participalion in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee 
contribrnions to the System cease. The monthly retirement benelit that would have been payable is paid 
into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination of employment, a participant in the 
program shall receive, at his option, a lump-sum payment from lhc account or an annuity based on the 
deferred re\irement option plan account balance in addition to hi s regular monthly benefit. 
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If employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 months. the partidpant resumes regular contributions 
to the System. No payments may be made from the deferred retirement option pla11 account until the 
participant reti res. 

Initial Renefit Option Plan 

Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to part icipate in DROP may 
elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit opt ion (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of 
benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain in 
the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Cost of Living Adiustmcnts (COLAs) 

Under the provisions of R.S. l 1 :246 and l 1 :2260(A)(7), the board of trustees is authorized to grant retired 
members and widows of members who have retired an annual cost of living increase of up to 3% of their 
current benefi t, and all retired members and widows who are 65 years of age and older a 2% increase in 
their original benefit. In order for the board to grant either of these increases, the System must meet certain 
criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings (R.S. 11 :243). In lieu of these 
COLAS, pursuant to ltS. I l :24 1, the board may also grant an increase in the form of "Xx (A+l3)," where 
"X" is any amount up to $1 per month, and ''A" is equal to the number of years of credi ted service accrued 
at retirement or at death of the member of retiree, and " B'' is equal to the number of years since retirement 
or since death of the member or retiree to June 30th of the initial year of such increase. 

Funding Policy - State statute requires covered employees 10 contribute 10.00 percent of their salaries to the 
system. The City is required to contribute 33.75 percent o f covered employees' salaries. As provided by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 1 I: I 03, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are 
subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's 
contribution to the System for the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $31 7, 1 12 and $300,8 I 2, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for the year. 

The Sys1em issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the Systern. That report may be obtained by writing lo the 
Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-1752, or by 
calling (225) 925-4060. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Re lated to Pensions 

At June 30. 2021, the City reported a liabi lity of $1 ,317,845 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liabil ity for the FRS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension 
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liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The City's proportion of the net pension liabil ity was based on a projection of the Ci ty's loJ1g-term share of 
contributions to the FRS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the City's proportion was 0.37 I 868%, which was an increase of 
0.024646% from its proportion measured as ofJune 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 202 I , the City recognized pension expense of $161 ,099. 

Non-employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an 
actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City recognized$ I 06,234 of 
non-employer contribution revenue. 

At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 

Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected 

and actua I earnings on pension 
plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent 

Lo measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

$ 

$ 

of Resources of Resources 

18,807 
285,568 

211 ,189 

317,11 2 
832.676 

$ 

$ 

(118,345) 

(795,746) 

(42,554) 

(956,645) 

The City repot1ed a total of $317,112 as deferred outflow o f resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2021, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized os an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30: 

2021 

2022 

2023 
2024 
2025 

2026 

Total 

Actuaria l Methods and Assumptions 

FRS 

$ (9 1,695) 
(92,092) 

(147,673) 

(213,760) 
S 1,119 

39,758 
$(454,343) 

The net pension liability was measured as the port ion of the present value of projected benefit payments 
to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is altributed to 
those employees ' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 

The components of the net pension I iability of the City as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Total Pension Liabil~y 
Plan fiduciary Net Position 
Total Collective Net Pen<;ion Liability 

2021 

$9,970,465 
(8,652,620) 

$ l ,3 I 7,845 

2020 

$8,787,649 
(6,380,863) 

$2,406,786 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 202 1 valuation were based on the assumptions used in 
the June 30, 202 1 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July I, 2009 - June 30, 20 14. In cases where benefit structures were changed af,er 
the study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the 101a) pension 
liability as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 
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Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

.ILUle 30, 2020 

Entry Age N onml Cost 

Expected remaining service lives 7 years, closed period 

lnvcstmen( rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases 

Cost ofliving adjustments 

6. 9% per annum 

2.50% per annum 

Vary rrom l 4.1 O¾ in the tirst two years or 
service to 5.2% after 25 years 

f-or the pupose or dete1mining the present 
value of benefits, COLAs \.vere deemed not 
to be substantively automatic and only those 
previously granted were included. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed on plan data for 
the period July I, 2009 through June 30) 2014. The data was lhen assigned credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then projected 
forward lo a period equivalent to the est imated durat ion of the System's liabilities. The RP-2000 
Combined Healthy with 131ue Collar Adjustment Sex District Tables projected to 203 I using Scale AA 
were selected for employee, annuitant, and beneficiary monality. The RP-2000 Disabled Lives 
Mortality Table set back five years for males and set back three years for females was selected for 
disabled annuitants. Setbacks in these tables were used 10 approximate mortality improvement. 

The estimated long-term expected rnle of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are dcvelored for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in FRS' target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table: 

61 



CITY OF EUN ICE, LOUIS IANA 

Notes of rinancial Statements 

NOTE 8 PENSfON AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 
Long-Tenn 

Target Asset Expected Real 
Asset Type Allocation Rate ofRerum 
U.S. Equity 27.50% 5.86% 

Equity 
Non-U.S. Equity 11.50% 6.44% 

Global Equity 10.00% 6.40% 

.E(nerging Markets 7.00% 8.64% 

Fixed Income 18.00% 0.97% 

Fixed Income U.S. Tips 3.00% 0.40% 

Emerging Markets 5.00% 2.75% 

Real Estate 6 .00% 5.3 1% 

Alternatives Real Assets 3.00% 0.00% 

Private E.,quity 9.00% 9.53% 

Multi-Asset Global Tactical Asset Allo<;ation 0.00% 4.17% 

Strategies Risk Parity 0.00% 4.17% 

I 00.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabil ity was 7.0%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the-recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available 10 make al I projected r ul ure benefit pay rnents of current active and inactive plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate or return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liabili ty. 

Sensitivity to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The fo llowing presents the net pension liability or the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.9%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be ifit were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.90% or one pcrcentag<::: point higher 8.00% 
than the current rate as of June 30, 2021. 

Net Pension Liability 

Changes in Disc0Lo1t Rate 

1% 

Decrease 
5.90% 

$2,528,189 
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Change in Ncl Pension Liability 

The changes in lhe net pension liability fo r the year ended June 30, 202 I were recognized in the 
current reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Differences he/ween Expecied and Acfua! Experience.· 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension expense using the 
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining 
service li ves of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Differences be1ween ProjecJed and Acltwl !nvesiment Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

The changes of assumptions about fu ture economic or demographic factors were recognized in pension 
expense using the straight-line amorti zation method over a closed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided wi th pensions through the pension 
plan. 

Change in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer' s proportionate shares o f the collective net pension liability and collective 
def erred out flows of resources and deferred in flows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-l ine amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees tha t are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions - Proportionate Share 

Differences between contribullons remitted to the System and the employer's proportiom11e share are 
recognized in pension expense using the straighL-line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees Chat are provided with a pensjon 
through the pension plan. 
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Retirement System Audit Report 

Firefighters ' Retirement System issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: 
www.lafi refi ghtersret.com or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor' s official website: 
www.lla.state.la.us. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Svstem 

Plan Description 

The System was establ ished for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits as 
stated under the provisions of La. R.S. 11:401, as amended, for eligible state o fficers, employees and 
their beneficiaries. The projection of benefit payments in the calculat ion of the total pension liability 
includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in 
accordance with the benefi t terms and any additional legal agreemen1s to provide benefits that are in 
force at the measurement date. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should ref'er to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Retirement Benefits 

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with ful l benefits are 
established by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification. 
Our rank and file members hired prior to July 1, 2006, may either re1urn with full benefits at any age 
upon completing 30 years of creditable service, at age 55 upon completing 25 years of creditable 
service, and at age 60 upon completing ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. Those 
members hired bel\-veen July I, 2006 and June JO, 2015, may retire al age 60 upon completing five 
years of creditable service and those hired on or after July ! , 2015, may retire at age 62 upon 
completing five years of creditable service. The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 
2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation multiplied by Lhe number of years of creditable service. 
Additionally, members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, wi th an actuarially 
reduced benefil. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 
36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. For members hired 
July l , 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average annual earned 
compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum annual retirement 
benefit cannot exceed the lesser of I 00% of average compensation or a certain specified dollar amount 
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of actuarially determined monetary limits, which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement. 
Judges, court officers, and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal 
to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their 
respective capacity. As an alternative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may elect 10 receive 
their retirement throughout their life, with cert<1in benefits being paid to their designated beneficiary 
after their death . 

Act 992 of the 20 l O Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1, 2011. This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, 
and judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were formerly 
eligible to p<1rticipate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and 
judges are eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any 
age, with a reduced benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous du1y members are eligibJe to 
retire with twelve years of creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or with 
a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation will be based on the 
mernbcr's average annual earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment 
for all three new plans. Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty 
plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 3.5% accrual rate. The extra 1.0% accrual rate for each year of 
service for court officers, the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants at aims, 
or Senate secretary, employed after .January I, 2011 , was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan and 
regular members, hi red prior to January I, 20 l l, who are hazardous duty employees have the option to 
transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leav ing employment before a11aining minimum re tirement age, but after completing certain 
minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the 
minimum service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. 
The minimum service requirement for benefits varies depending upon the member's employer and 
service classification but generally is ten years of service. 

Deferred Benefits 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). 
When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they 
continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once 
participation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been 
paid to each retiree are separntely tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January l, 2004, 
interest at a rate ofone-half percent less than the System's reali zed return on its portfolio (not to be less 
than zero) wi II be credi ted to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose 
among available alternatives for the distribut ion of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP 
account. Members who enter DROP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to pa11icipate in LASERS 
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Sel r-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SOP allows DROP 
participants to choose from a menu or investment options for the allocat ion of their DROP balances. 
Participants may diversify their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual fund s with 
different holdings, management styles, and risk factors. 

Members eligible 10 retire and who do not choose to parti cipate in DROP may elect to receive at the 
time of retirement an initial benefit option (\BO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an 
actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January 
1, 2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at a rate ofone­
half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those 
members who select the 180 on or after January l, 2004, are required to enter the SOP as described 
above. 

Disability Benefits 

Active members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may receive a 
maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula wi thout reduction 
by reason of age. 

Upon reaching retirement age, the disi.lbility retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by making 
appl!cation to the Board of Trustees. 

For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan 
will receive a disability bcncti t equal to 75% of final average compensation. 

Survivor's Benefits 

Certain eJigible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's compensation 
and their relationship to tbe deceased. The deceased member who was in state service at the time of 
death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned 
immediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when 
earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits arc payable lo an 
unmarried child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned 
minimum service credit requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse -..vith no minor children, and 
benefits are to be paid for life lo the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

The deceased regular member hired on or after January 1, 201 1, must have a minimum of five years of 
service credit regardless of when earned in order lor a benefit to be paid to a minor chi ld. The 
aforementioned minimum service credit requirements for a surviving spouse are IO years, 2 years being 
earned immediately prior to death, and active state service at the time of death, or a minimum of 20 
years or service credit regardless of when earned. A deceased member's spouse must have been 
married for at least one year before death. 
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A Hazardous Duty Services Plan member' s surviving sr,ouse and minor or handicapped or mentally 
incapacitated child or children are entitled 10 survivor benefits of 80% of 1he member's final average 
compensa1ion if the member was killed in the line of duly. If the member dies in the line of duty as a 
result of an intentional act of violence, survivor benefits may be increased to I 00% of the members 
final average compensation. 

Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

As fu lly described in Title l I of the Louisiana Revised Stal'utes, the System allows for the payment of 
permanent benefit increases, also known as cost-of-living adjustments (COI..As), that are funded 
through investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trus1ees and approved by the State 
Legislature. 

Funding Policy .. Stace statute requires covered employees to contribute 13.00 percent of their salaries 
to the system. The City is required Lo contribute 43 percent of covered employees' salaries. /\s provided 
by Louisiana Revised Statute 11: 103, the employer con1ributions are determined by actuarial valuation 
and are subject to change each year based on Lhc results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The 
City's contribution lO the plan for the ye<1rs ending June 30, 2022 and 202 l were $7,40 l and $7,505, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, 340 I Un ited Pla7.a Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809, or by calling (225) 922-0600. 

Pension liab ilities, Pension Expense, anti Deferred Outtlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resou rces Related to Pensions 

Al June JO, 2020 the City reported a liabi lity of $48,220 for its proportionate share of 1he net pension 
liability for the LASERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 202 1 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension lic1bili1y was determined by an ac1uarial valuation as 
of that date. The City"'s pror,ortion o f1he net pension liability was based on a projection of the Ci1 y's 
long-term share of contri butions to the LASERS pension plan rela1ive to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially deterrnined. A l June JO, 2021, the City's proportion was 
0.00089%, which was unchanged from June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June JO, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $2,403. 

Non-employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance prernium tax monies as add itional employer contributions. The 1ax 
is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appror,rialed by 1he legislature each year based 
on an actuarial study. Non-employer con1ributions arc recognized c1s revenue. The City recognized $0 
of non-employer contribution revenue. 
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Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rutc 

The following presents the net pension liabil ity or the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.40%, as wel l c1s what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rate. 

Changes in Discount Rate 

r-~mrloyer Net Pension Liability 

Change in Net Pension Liability 

1% Decrease 
6.40% 

$ 64,188 

Crn1·ent 
Discount Rate 

7.40% 
$ 48,220 

I% Increase 
8.40% 

$ 34,077 

The changes in net pension liabili ty for the year ended June JO, 202 1 were recognized as pension 
expense or benefit in the current reporting period except as fo llows: 

Differences between E-r::pecred and Actual Experience 

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in 
the measurement or the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using the straight­
line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service 
Ii ves of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Difference between Projecied and /Jctual lnve.1·t1ne111 Earnings 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period. 

At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in nows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Diffe rences between expected 

and actual experience $ 48 $ 

Changes in assumptions 1,196 

Net difference be twee n projected 

and actual earnings on rension 

plnn investments ( 11 ,385) 

Changes in proportion and differences 

between employer contribu1ions and 

proport ionate shnre of contributions 

Employer cont ributions subsequent 

to measurement date 7,401 

Total $ 8,645 $ ( 11 ,385) 

The City reported a total of $7,40 l as deferred out fl ow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period or.rune JO, 2020, which \Viii be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liabi lity in the year ended June 30, 202 l . 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Total 

Actuarial Methods a nd Assumptions 

LASERS 
$ (732) 

(l,754) 

(2,587) 
(5 ,068) 

$ ( l 0, 14 I ) 

The net pension liabi lity was measured as the portion of the present value of projected bene fit 
payments to be provided through the pension plan 10 current active and inactive employees that is 
attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position. 

The components of the net pension liabil ity or the System' s employers as of June 30, 202 l are as 
follows: 
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Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciaiy Net Position 
Employers' Net Pension Liability 

Plan Fiducia1y Net Position as a Percentage of 
Total Pension Liability 

Actuarial Assumptions 

202 1 
$179,961 
(131,74 1) 

$ 48,220 

72.80% 

2020 
$ I 75,253 
(101,479) 

$ 73,774 

58.00% 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarinl cost method 

June 30, 202 1 

Ent1y Age Nonna! 

Expected remaining service lives 2 years 

Investment rate of rerum 

Inflation rate 

Mortality 

Tennination, Disability, and 
Retirement 

7.4% per annum 

2.3% per anmun 

Non-disabled members - Mortalrty rates based 
on the RP-2000 Combined l-lec1lthy Morlality 
Table with mo1iality improvement projected LLSing 
the MP-2018 mortality scale, applied on a fully 

generational basis. 
Disabled members - Mortality rates based on the RP-
2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no 
projection ror mortalrty improvement. 

Termination, disability, and retirement asstunptions were 
projected based on a five-year (2009-2013) experience 

study of the System's members. 
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Salary increases Salary increases were projected bused on a 2009-2013 
experience study of the System's members. The salary 
increase ranges tor specific types of members are: 

Lower Upper 

Member Ty12c Range Range 
Regular 3.0% 12.8% 

Judges 2.6% 5.1% 

Corrections 3.6% 13.8% 

Hazardous Duty 3.6% 13.8% 
Wildlife 3.6% 13.8% 

Cosl of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously grantee.I cost of living increases. ll1e projected 
benefit paynx:nts do not inck1dc provisions for potential 

fulw:e increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building­
block melhod in which bes(-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, 
nel of pension plan investment expense and inflation) arc developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of2.3% 
and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of 
return is 7.6% for 2021. Best estimates of geometric real rntes of return for each major asset class 
included in tbe System's target asset allocalion as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following 
table: 

Expected Long Term Real Rates of Rerurn 
Asset Class 2021 

Cash 
Domestic Equity 
lntematiorn.11 Equily 
D01nestic Fixed Income 
International fixed Income 
Alternative I nvesllnents 
Global Tactical Asset J\llocation 

Total Fw1d 
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Discount lh1te 

The discount rate used to measure the tota l pension liability was 7.40%. The rroject ion of cash tlows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members wi ll be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers wi II be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PR SAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benetit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long­
tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to a ll periods of projected benefi1 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2021 were recognized as 
pension expense or benefit in the current reporting period except as follows: 

Differences between F:xpec!ecl and Actual Experience 

Differences het·ween expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using 
the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal lo the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

D(/ferences between Projec1ed and Actuol lnvesfrnenl Earnings 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recogni%cd in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period. 

Contributions - Proportionate Sharc/Ch:mgc in Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense using the straight line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of a ll employees that are provided wi th a pension 
through the pension plan. 

Changes in the employer's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inllows of resources since the prior measurement date are 
recogni1-ed in employer's pension expense using the straight-line arno11ization method over a closed 
period equal to the average o f the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided 
pensions through the pension plan. 
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Estimates 

The process of preparing the schedules of employer a l locations an<l schedules o f pension amounts in 
conformi ty with accounting pri nciples generally accepted in the United Slates of America requires the 
use of estimates and assumptions regarding cert<1in types of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 
Accordingly, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Retirement System Audit Reports 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System has issued stand-alone audit reports on their 
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 202 l and 2020. Access to the reports can be found on 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www. ll a. la.gov and the System's website, 
http://www. laserson line.org/site.php. 

Pension Summary 

Deferred Deferred 
Ne1 Pension Outfiows of lnfiows of 

Liabil~}'. Resources Resources 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System $ 2.305,546 $ 609,209 $ 860,480 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System l,982,526 847,136 1,248,35 I 

Fire fighters' Retirement System l,3 17,845 832,676 956,645 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 48,220 8,645 11 ,385 

Total 5,654, 137 2;2.97,666 3,076,861 

Portion Applicable to Business Type Activities 554,937 150,052 260,023 

Portion Applicable to Governmental Type Activities $ 5,099,200 $ 2, 147,61 4 $ 2,81 6,838 
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Proprietary fund Type: 
Restricted assets applicable to customers' deposits at June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Custorrers' deposits: 

Cash 

NOTE 10 DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

General Fund 
Special Revenue runds -

Sales Tax Ftmd 

$351 , 180 

$35 1,180 

Due From 
Other Funds 
$ 350,3 19 

54,76 1 

Due to 
Other Funds 
$ 133,853 

St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District 
Court Witness Fees Fw1d 807 

345,990 

Enterprise f-wid -
Utility Fund 

NOTE 11 ENTERPRISE FUND OPERATIONS 

73,956 

$479,843 $ 479,843 

Operations of the City of Eunice Utility System consist of a gas distribution system and sewer utility 
system. Operating results of the individL1al utilities for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Operating Revenues 
0 perat ing Expen<;es 

Operating lncon"e (loss) 

Gas Departnient 
$ 1,664 , 134 

1,792,944 

Sewer Department 
$ 1.266, 11 1 

1,827,838 

$ ( I 2 8 ,8 J 0) =$===( 5=6=1 '=7?=_ 7==) 

Operating expenses above include costs which cannot be directly associated with a single department; 
1hus these expenses have been allocated on the basis of gross utility sales. For the fi scal year ended 
June 30, 2022, the Gas and Sewer Utilities provided services lo 3,80 I and 5,685 customers, 
respective ly. 
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CITY Of EUNICE, LOU ISIANA 

Notes of Financial Srntcments 

NOTE 13 PENDING LlTIGATION 

Various lawsuits are presently pending against the City of Eunice. In a ll cases where damages are 
being sought from the City, attorneys for the City are of the opinion rhat any judgements rendered in 
favor of the plaintiffs or payments resulting from the compromise settlemcn1s, if any, will be within 
the limits of the various insurance coverages carried by the City. In one lawsuit, which may not be 
covered by insurance, the Ci!y attorney is unable to es1imale liability to the Ci ty of Eunice, if any. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Ye.ir Ended June 30. 2022 

Original Final Favorable 
Buctset Budget Actual (Unfavorable 1 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 1,452,000 $ 1,531 ,000 $ 1,558,920 $ 27,920 

Licenses and pennits 5 10,000 495,000 565,215 70,2 15 
Intergovernmental revenues 273,000 2,106,000 2, 1 OJ,304 (2,696) 

Fines and forteitures 12,000 ! 5,000 10,193 (4,807) 

Liberty Cajun Music Show 52,760 54,085 93,878 39,793 

!n1eres1 4,050 4,1 20 5,453 1,333 

Miscellaneous 825, 175 867,500 799,816 (67,684) 
Total revenues J, l 28,985 5,072,705 5, 136,779 64,074 

Expenditures 
Current -

General government 1,675, 160 l ,8 10, 125 1,950,384 (1 40,259) 

Public safety 4,205.1 00 4,510,250 4,267,222 243,028 

Pub I ic works 897,725 1,080,200 I, 190,728 ( l l 0,528) 
Health and welfare 72.750 64,900 13,348 5 1,552 
Culture and recreation 780.450 842,635 821,329 21,306 
Other 53,000 84,500 85,927 ( l ,427) 

Total expenditures 7,684, l 85 8,392,610 8,328,938 63,672 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (4 ,555,200) (3,3 19,905) (3,192, l 60) 127,746 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 4,558,750 5,256,500 5,107,403 (149,097) 

Operating transfers out (48,000) (48,000) 
Other source of income 

Total other financing sources (uses 4,558,750 5,256,500 5,059,403 (197,097) 

Excess (deficiency) o r revenues 
and other sources over 
expenditures ,md ocher uses 3,550 1,936,595 1,867,244 (69,352) 

rund balances, beginning 205,5 13 687,747 687,747 
Fund balances, ending $ 209,063 $ 2,624,342 $ 2,554,991 $ (69,352) 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUlSl!\NA 
Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Bud~et Budge! Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 5.622,750 $ 6,737,500 $ 7,015.122 $ 277,622 

Intergovernmental re.venues 25,000 5,000 3,592 ( 1,408) 

Other 18,000 (18,000) 

Interest 7,000 100,000 24,742 (75 ,258) 

Tolal revenues 5,654,750 6,860,500 7,043,456 182,956 

Expenditures: 
Current -

General goveniment 193,700 260,300 224,903 35,397 

Culture and recreation 1. 125,000 185,000 169,820 15,180 

Public safety l 08,070 (108,070) 

Public works 552,29 l (552,29 1) 

Capital outlay 1,860,000 2,773,509 2,089,946 683,563 

Debt service -
Principal retirement 62,500 62,500 131,824 (69,324) 

Interest 17,000 17,000 23,900 (6,900) 

Total expenditures 3,258,200 3,298,309 3,300,754 (2,445) 

Excess or revenues 
over expenditures 2,396,550 3,562, 19 } 3,742,702 180,5 1) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Lease proceeds 427,260 427,260 

Operating transfers out (3,872,750) (4,891,500) (5,332,899) (44 1,399) 
Total 01her financing sources (uses) (3,872,750) (4,891,500) (4,905,639) (14,139) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures and 
other uses ( 1,476,200) (1,329,309) (1,162,937) 166,372 

Fund balances, beginning 6, 196,847 6,163,333 6, 163,333 

Fund balances, ending $ 4,720.647 $ 4,834,024 $ 5,000,396 $ 166,372 

See accompanying notes to Requi red Supplementary Information. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Year Ended June 30. 2022 

Original Final 

Budget Budget 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental revenues $ 380,000 $ l 90,000 

Interest JOO 40 

Total revenues 380,100 190,040 

Expenditures 

Current -

General government 

Public safety 84,600 98,850 

Total expenditures 84,600 98,850 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 295,500 91,190 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out (295,000) (135,000) 

Total other financing uses (295,000) (135,000) 

Excess ( de fie iency) of revenues 

and other sources over 

expenditures and other uses 500 (43,810) 

fund balances. beginning 97,836 46,185 

Fund balances, ending $ 98,336 $ 2,375 

Actual 

$ 359,927 

705 

360,632 

l 47,383 

l 47,383 

213,249 

(300,000) 

(300,000) 

(86,751) 

46, I 85 

$ (40,566) 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary [nformation. 
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Variance -

favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 169,927 

665 
170,592 

(48,533) 

(48,533) 

219,125 

( ! 65,000) 

(165,000) 

(42 ,941) 

$ (42,941 ) 



MERS 

MPERS 

CITY or EUNICE, LOUISI/\NA 
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

ror the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Employer's 
Proportionate 
Share of the 

Employer Employer Net Pension 
Proportionate Proportionate Liability Plan Fiduciary 

of the Share of lhe Employer's (Asset) as a Net Pos ition 
Net Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of as a Percentage 

riscal Liability Liability Employee It's Covered of the Tota I 
Year (Asset) (/\sset) Pavroll Employee Payroll Pension Liability 

20 15 0.96599 1% $ 2,479,162 $1,537,227 161.30% 76.94% 

20 16 0.966778% 3,453,482 1,765,280 195.63% 66. 18% 

2017 0.980160% 4,0 17,392 1,75 1,763 229.33% 62. 17% 

2018 0.965789% 4.040,303 1,869,843 216.07% 62.49% 

2019 1.026833% 4,251.785 1.674,619 253.89% 63.94% 

2020 0.90461 7% 3,780,088 1,609,496 234.86% 64.68% 

2021 0.844050% 3,649,173 1,608,706 226.84% 64.52% 
2022 0.828885% 2,305,546 1,776,692 129.77% 77.82% 

2015 0.4329 19% 2,708.377 1,115, 18\ 242.86% 75.10% 
2016 0.340775% 2,669,616 996,046 268.02% 70.73% 

20 17 0.392600% 3,679.768 1.143,297 321,85% 66.42% 

2018 0.381941% 3,334,507 I, 163,519 286.59% 70.72% 

20 19 0.393876% 3,329,852 I, 106,403 300.96% 71.88% 
2020 0.352 127% 3,197,903 1,009,496 3 16.78% 71.01% 

2021 0.322396% 2,979,690 I, 142,457 260.81% 70.95% 

2022 0.371918% 1,982,526 1,047,579 189.25% 84.09% 

This schedule will contain ten years of his1orical information once such information becomes c:ivailable. 
The amounts presented have a measurement dale of the previous year end of' the plan. 

See accompanying notes to Requ ired Supplementary Informat ion. 
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17RS 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISJANA 
Schedule of Employer 's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

£7 or the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Employer's 
P ropo11 ion a I e 

Share of the 
Employer Employer Net Pension 

Proponionate Proportionate Liability Plan Fiduciary 
oflhe Share of the F.mrloyer's (Asset) as a Net Position 

Net Pension Nel Pension Covered Percentage of as a Percentage 
Fiscal Liability Liability Employee It's Covered of the Total 
Year (Asset) {Asset) Payroll Employee Payroll Pension Liability 

2015 0.332973% 1.481,70 I 726,902 203.84% 76.02% 
20)6 0.33 1590% 1,789,628 727,923 245.85% 72.45% 
2017 0.322836% 2.1 11,639 795.794 265.35% 68. 16% 
2018 0.340832% 1.953,598 847,33 1 230.56% 76.55% 
2019 0.355897% 2.047,057 824,575 248.26% 74.76% 
2020 0.341174% 2,136,401 864.447 247.14% 73.96% 
202] 0.347222% 2,406,786 932.75 1 258.03% 72.6 1% 

2022 0.371868% 1,3 17.845 941.129 140.03% 86.78% 

LASERS 20!5 0.000880% 55,213 17,212 320.80% 73.99% 
2016 0.000960% 65,158 17,212 378.56% 62.67% 
2017 0.000940% 73,657 17,212 427.94% 57.70% 
2018 0.000970% 67,92S 17,2 12 394.64% 62.50% 
2019 0.000920% 62,402 17,212 364.54% 64.49% 

2020 0.000890% 64,697 17,212 375.88% 62.90% 
2021 0.000890% 73,774 17,212 428.62% 58.00% 
2022 0.000890% 48,220 17,2 12 280.15% 72.80% 

This schedule will contain 1cn years of historical information once such information becomes available. 
The amounts rresented have a measure ment date or the rrevious year end of the plan. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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MERS 

MPERS 

ClTY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule or Employer's Proportionale Share of Net Pension Liabi lity 

f-or the Year Ended June 30. 2022 

Contributions 

in Relation Employer's 

Contractually 10 Contractua l Contribution Covered 

Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Employee 

Year Conlribut ion Contribution (Excess) Pa~roll 
2015 $ 294,884 $ 294,884 $ $ 1,537,227 
20}6 349,677 349,677 1,765,280 

2017 398,626 398,626 1,75 1,763 

2018 462,786 462,786 ! .869,843 
2019 435,40 1 435,40 I l,674,6 19 
2020 446,635 446,635 1,609,496 
2021 474,568 474,568 1,608,706 
2022 524, }24 524,124 1,776,692 

2015 345,796 345_.796 1,11 5,18 1 
2016 294,230 294,230 996.046 
2017 362,912 362,9 12 1,143,297 
2018 357,782 357,782 1,163,5 19 
20}9 356,8 14 356,8 14 1,106,403 

2020 328,240 328,240 1,009,970 
2021 385.580 385.580 I, 142,457 
2022 3 11.655 311,655 1.047.579 

Con tr ibut ions 
as a Percent 

of Covered 

Employee 

Parroll 

19.18% 
}9.80% 

22.75% 
24.75% 

26.00% 
27.75% 
29.50% 
29.50% 

31.00% 
29.53% 

31.75% 
30.75% 
32.25% 

32.50% 
33.75% 
29.75% 

T his schedule will contain ten years or histor ical information once such information becomes available. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Informat ion. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule or Employer' s Prorortionatc Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2022 

Contributions Contributions 

in Relation Employer's as a Percent 

Contractually to Contractual Contribution Covered or Covered 

Fisca l Required Required Deficiency Cmployee Emrloyee 

Year Contribution Coniribution (Excess) Paz:roll Palroll 

FRS 2015 212,619 212,6 19 726,902 29.25% 

2016 198,359 198.359 727,923 29.25% 

2017 200,937 200,937 795,794 25.25% 

2018 224,543 224,543 847,331 26.50% 

201 9 218.512 2 18,512 824,575 26.50% 

2020 235,844 235,844 864,447 27.75% 
2021 300,812 300,812 932.75 I 32.25% 

2022 3 17, 112 317,112 941 ,129 33.75% 

LASERS 2015 7,143 7,143 17,212 41.50% 

2016 6,835 6,835 17,2 12 39.7 1% 
2017 6.317 6,3 }7 17,212 36.70% 

2018 6,816 6,8 16 17,212 39.60% 

2019 6,721 6,72 1 17,212 39.00% 

2020 7,229 7,229 17,212 42.00% 
2021 7,505 7,505 17,212 43.60% 

2022 7,401 7,40 1 17,2 12 43.60% 

This schedule will contain ten years of historical infom,ation once such information becomes avail able. 

See accomranying notes to Requi red Supplementary Information. 
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CJTY Of EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

NOTE 1 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGcTS 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Council no later than 
fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed budget is 
available for pub I ic inspection. At the same time, a pub I ic hearing is called. 

A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the 
heartng. 

After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage or an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or 
function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval of the Council. 

Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
of the United States of America. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended from 
time to time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended prior to the fiscal year end June 
30, 2022. 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND i\CCOUNTABJLITY 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropdations in Individual Funds: 

St. Landry Acadia 
Sales Tax fund 

Budget Actual Variance 
$98,850 $}47,383 $(48,533) 

$3,298,309 $3,300,754 $(2,445) 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

NOTE 3 PENSJON PLAN 

Changes of Bene fit Terms 

For ME Rs, f'RS, MPERS, and LASERS, there were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 
30, 202 l. 

Changes of Assumptions 

Changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors or of other inputs were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight !ine amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions 
through the pension plan. These assumptions include the rate of investment return, mortali1y of plan 
members, rale of salary increase, rates of retirement, rates of termination, rates of disabi I ity, and various 
other factors that have an impact on the cost o f the plans. 

Municipal rmployccs' Retirement Svstcm 
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30. 202 l , the discount rate was reduced from 6. 95% to 
6.85%. 

Firefighters' Retirement Svstcm 
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2021, the discount rate was reduced from 7.00% to 
6.90%. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 202 l , the discount rnte was reduced from 6. 95% to 
6.75%. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
For the actuarial va luation for the year ended June 30, 2021 , the discount rate was reduced from 7.55% to 
7.40%. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY JNFOR.MATlON 
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

88 



ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Due from other fimds 
Tota l assets 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOUlS[ANA 

N onrna_jor Governmental FUI1ds 
Oalancc Sheet 

June 30, 2022 

Special 

Revenue 
Flmds 

$ 78, 182 

807 
$ 78,989 

LIABILITIES AND FUND CQU[TY 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 

Due lo other fLU1ds 

Tola) liabilities 

Ftmd balances: 

Assigned 78,989 
Total fimd balances 78,989 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 78,989 

89 

Total 
Capital Nonmajor 

Project Governmenta l 

l'U11dS Funds 

$ 45,423 $ 123,605 

807 
$ 45,423 $ 124,412 

$ $ 

45,423 124,4 12 

45,423 124,4 12 

$ 45,423 $ 124,4 12 



CITY OF EUN ICE, LOUISIANA 
N onrnajor Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
f-\md Balances 

Y~ar Ended June JO, 2022 

Total 
Special Capital Nonrrajor 
Revenue Project Goverrunenwl 
roods Funds Ftmds 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenues $ 3,78 1 $ $ 3,781 

Fines, fo rfe itures and bonds 1,680 1,680 

Interest 3 17 191 508 

Total revenues: 5,778 191 5,969 

Expenditures: 
CtDTent -

General govemirent 507 507 

Total expendil'lJres 507 507 

Excess (de ficiency) ot' 
revem1es over expenditures 5,27 1 19 1 5,462 

Fund balances, beg~1ning 73,7 18 45,232 l 18,950 

Fund balances, ending $ 78,989 $ 45,423 $ 124,4 12 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REV[NUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds arc used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purpose. 

PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING FUND 

To account for receipts and ex pend itures associated with coun fees collected in connec1ion wi Lh drug and alcohol 
related driving offenses. 

COURT APPEARANCE BOND FUND 

To account for receipls and expenditures associated with the receipt of appearance bonds collected on arrests and 
lraffic citations. 

WITNESS FEES FUND 

To account for receipts and expenditures associated with wi1ness fees collected by City Coui1. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISI ANA 

N onrnajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining IJal,mce Shee t 

June 30, 2022 

Public Coun 
Satety Appearance Witness 

Testing Bond Fees 

flmd Fund fund Totals 
ASSETS 

Cash $17,384 $ 32,343 $ 28.455 $ 78, 182 

Due from other fi.mds 807 807 

Total assets $17,384 $ 32,343 $29,262 $ 78,989 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCFS 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ $ $ $ 

Total liabilities 

Fw1d balances: 
Assigned 17,384 32,343 29,262 78,989 

Total fund balances 17,384 32,343 29,262 78,989 

Total liabilities and iund balances $ I 7,384 $ 32,343 $29,262 $ 78,989 
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CllY OF EUNICE, LOUIS£ANA 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining S1a1ement of Revenues, Expcnclinires and Changes in Fund Balances 
Ye<1r Ended June 30, 2022 

Public CoLU·t 

Salety Appearance Witness 
Testing Bond Fees 
Fund FLD1<l Fw1d Totals 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenues $ 368 $ $ 3,4 13 $ 3,781 

Fine, for!eitl.ires and bonds 1,680 1,680 

Interest 72 131 l 14 317 

Total revenues 440 1,8 11 3,527 5,778 

Expenditures 
CL01·cnt -

General government 507 507 

Public safety 

Total expenditlU"es 507 507 

Excess (<leliciency) of revenues 
over expenditures 440 1,81 l 3,020 5,271 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating trnnsrers in 
0 pcrating transfers out 

Total other financing uses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other sources over 
expendirures and other uses 440 1,81 l 3,020 5,271 

rund balances, beginning 16,944 30,532 26,242 73,718 

Fund balances, ending $17,384 $ 32,343 $ 29,262 $ 78,989 
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NONMAJOR CAPlTAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Capital Project funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
capital projects. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISlANJ\ 
Nonrnajor Capital Projects Fund 

13alance Sheet 
Jw1e 30, 2022 

ASSETS 
Cash 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND f UND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

fund bHlances: 
Assigned 

Tota I luml balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

95 

$45,423 

$45,423 

$ 

45,423 

45,423 

$45,423 



CITY OF EUN ICE, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Capital ProjeclS Fw1d 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund ])a lances 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental revenues $ 

Interest 
Total revenues 

Expendinircs 
CwTent -

General govcmrnent 
Capital Outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 

Fxccss ( deficiency) of revenues 
and other sources over 

expenditures and other uses 

Pund balances, beginning 

Fw1d balances, ending $ 
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I 9 I 

191 

191 

l9l 

45,232 

45,423 



ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

UTrLITY FUND 

The fund is 10 account for the city's operation of the gas and sewer departments. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

£n1erprise Fund 
Utility hmd 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Nel Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Gas Sewer 

Deeartmenl Deearllncnt 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 1.627,196 $ 1,254,466 

Other billings to customers 36.938 11 ,645 

Total openlling revenues 1,664, 134 1.266. 111 

Operating expenses 
Payroll and related benefits 2 12,792 309,7 16 
Natural gas purchases 1.053.99 1 
Supplies and materials S 1.844 141,781 
Repairs and maintenance 165,226 657 ,3() I 

Office expenses 33,432 8,612 
Professional fees 14.685 14,684 
Insurance • general 69.272 32,903 
Depreciation 95.645 276.953 
Group insurance 34,063 43.646 

Bad debts 8,739 

Permits 33,742 
UIiliIies and telephone 13,404 229,664 
Amortization expense-right o f use 20,0 15 8,175 
Interest expense 3,011 1.230 
Mis(:ellaneous 13.627 68,390 

Tola I operating expenses I 789,746 1,826,887 

Operating income (loss) $ (125.61 2) $ (560,776) 

Nonoperating income (loss): 
lnteresl earned on investments 
Nonemployer pension conIribut ion 

Total nonoperating income 

Income berore operating transfers 

Operating transfers: 
Opera1ing lransfers in 

Operating lransfers out 
Total opcraIing transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net posi1ion. ending 

98 

Total 

$ 2,88 1,662 
48,583 

2,930,245 

522,508 
1,053.991 

193.625 
822,617 

42,044 
29,369 

102,175 
372,598 

77,709 
8,739 

33,742 
243,068 

28,190 
4,241 

82,017 
3,616,633 

(686,388) 

2.890 
20,247 
23,137 

(663,251) 

1,175,674 
{602, 178) 
573,496 

(89.755) 

5.358,069 

$ 5,268,31 4 



INTERNAL CONTROL 
AND 

COMPLIANCE 
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SHIRLE'f VIGE. JR .. C.P.A. 
FRANK G. TUJAGUE. C.P.A. 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. C.P.A. 

VIGE, TUJAGUE ~ NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

1 51 N. 2!!P STREET 
P. 0. BOX I 006 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535 
TELEPHONE: 

337-457-9324 
FAX: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FTNANCJAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCF. AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable lvlayor Scott Fontenot 
and Members of the Council 
City of Eunice, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America 
and the standards appl icable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Standards issued by the 
Comptrol ler General of the United States, the financial slc.1terncnts of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund info1mation of City of Eunice, Louisiana, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to !he financial statements, which co ll ectively 
comprise City of Eunice, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 8. 2022. Our report was modified to include an emphasis o f matter paragraph regarding the 
implementation or Government /\ccounti ng Standards Board Statement No. 87, /,eases. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Eunice, Louisiana 's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control} to detemline the audi t procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opi nion on the effectiveness of City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness or City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists \.vhen the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course o f performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility tha1 a rna1erial misstatement of the enti1y's financial statements 
wi ll not be preven1ed, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A siKnificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies. in internal control thal is less severe than a material weakness, yet iinporlant enough 
to merit auent ion by those charged wi th governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the tirst paragraph of this seccion 
and was not designed to identify ull deficiencies in in1ernal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identi fy any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. Ho\vcver, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedL1le of findings and 
questioned costs as items #2022-001 through #2022-003, which we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

Report on Compliance and Other Mutters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Eunice, Louisiana ·s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its comrliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 'vVith which could have a direct and material effect on the 
detennination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audi t, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinfon. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standardr and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items #2022-00 I through #2022-003. 

City of Eunice, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

City of Eunice, Louisiana's response to the find ings identified in our audit is desc ribed in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Eunice, Louisiana's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of internal control and compliance a11d the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purrose. 

~~.t ~2j ~~p1,)1toJ 
December 8, 2022 
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CITY OF EUNJCE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of rindings and Responses 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

We have audited the financial statements of City of Eunice, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2022. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our audit 
of the financial statcmenls as of .lune 30, 2022, resulted in an unmodified opinion. 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Reports 

a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance M<1terial to the Financial Statements 

internal Control 
Material Weaknesses Yes _x_No Significant Deficiencies _x_ Yes _No 
Compliance 
Noncompliance Material to Financial Statement _ Yes __x__ No 

b. Federal Awards 

None 

Section II. Financial Statement Findings 

#2022-001 Segregation of Accounting f-unct ions 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not have adequate segregation of functions within Lhe accounting system. 

Criteria: Sf\S 109, Understanding the Entity and its Environment and Assessing the Risks rf Material 
Misstatement, A UJ 14.43 defines internal control as follO\,vs: 

"Internal control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, management, and 
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives wi1h regard to reliability of financi.:11 reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on S1andards for Altestalion Engagements (SSAE) AT501.03 states: 

··An entity's internal control over financ ial report ing includes 1hose policies and procedures 
that pertain to an entity's ability 10 record, process, summarize, and repoJ1 financial data 
consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual financial statements or interim 
financial statements, or both." 
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Cause: 

Effect: 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 
Y car Ended June JO, 2022 

The cause of the condition is the fact that the City docs not have a sut1icient number of staff 
rerforming administrative and financial duties so as to provide adequate segregation or accounting 
and financial duties. 

Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions increases the risk that errors 
and/or irregularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur and not be prevented and/or 
detected. 

Recommendation: Due 10 the size of the operation and the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it may not be 
feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: It is not cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the accounting function. No 
corredive action is considered necessary. 

f/2022-002 Budget Vadance 

Condition: The City's actual expenditures in the St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District Fund exceeded 
budgeted expenditures by greater than 5%. 

Criteria: When total actual expenditures exceed total budgeted expenditures by 5% or more and/or when 
total revenues fail to meet total budgeted revenues by 5% or more or there has been a change in 
operation upon which the original adopted budget was developed. the City shall adopt a budget 
amendment in an open meeting to reflect such a change. 

Cause: The cause of the condition is that the City did not make the necessary amendments to the budget 
prior to the year end. 

Effect: Failure to properly amend the budget results in variances beyond the 5% of budgeted revenues and 
expenses and results in noncompliance with budget Jaws. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the City muke !he necessary amendments to the budget prior to year 
end for changes in revenues and expenditures incurred. 

Response: The City will make the necessary amendments lo the budget prior to year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 
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CITY or EUNJCE, LOU[SIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 
Year [nded June JO, 2022 

#2022-003 Timelv Preparation of Bank Reconciliations 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not reconcile bank accounts on a timely basis. 

Criteria: All bank reconciliations should be prepared on a timely basis, as statements are received from the 
bank. 

Cause: The Clerk was unable to prepare reconciliations in a timely manner due to unexpected circumstances 
arising and a shortage of staff 

Effect: Untimely preparation of bank reconciliations results in a delay in financial reporting and may also 
allow fraudulent activity to go undetected. 

Recommendation: Bank reconciliations should be prepared on a monthly basis, as statements are available 
from the bank. 

Response: In the future, bank reconciliations will be prepared in a timely manner, as statements are received 
from the bank. 

Section Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None. 
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C[TY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Status of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

#2021-00 I Segregation of Accounting Functions 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not have adequate segregation of functions within the accoun ting system. 

Criteria: SAS l 09, Understanding the Entity and its Enviromnent and Assessing the Risks of Material 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Miss1atemen1, AUJ 14.43 defines internal control as follows: 

"Jnternal control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, management, and 
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to reliability of financia l reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations ... 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) ATS0 1.03 states: 

"An entity's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that pertain to an entity's abi lity to record, process, summarize, and report financial data 
consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual financial statements or interim 
financial statements, or both ." 

The cause of the condition is the fact that the City does not have a sufficient number of staff 
performing administrative and financial duties so as to provide adequate segregation of accounting 
and linancial duties. 

Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions increases the risk that errors 
and/or irregularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur and not be prevented and/or 
detected. 

Recommendation: Due to the size of the operation and the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it may not be 
feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: It is nol cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the accounting function. No 
corrective action is considered necessaiy. 

Status: This finding is repeated as #2022-001. 

#2021-002 Budget Variance 

Condition: The City's actual expenditures in the St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire Distric t Fund exceeded 
budgeted expenditures by greater than 5%. The City's budgeted revenues in the General Fund 
exceeded actual revenues by greater than 5%. 
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Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Status of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

When total actual expenditures exceed total budgeted expenditures by 5% or more and/or when 
total revenues fail to meet total budgeted revenues by 5% or more or there has been a change in 
operation upon which the original adopted budget \Vas developed, the City shall adopt a budget 
amendment in an open meeting to reflect such a change. 

The cause of the condition is that the Ci1y did not make the necessary amendrnents to the budget 
prior to the year end. 

Failure to properly amend the budget resulls in variances beyond the 5% of budgeted revenues and 
expenses and results in noncompliance with budget laws. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the City make the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year 
end for changes in revenues and expenditures incurred. 

Response: The City will make the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 

Status: This finding is repeated as //2022-002 and origin~te<l in 2014. 

#202 1-003 Shortage of Pledged Securities 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Bank account balances at June 30, 2021 exceeded FDIC Insurance and pledged securities 
from Bl Bank by $12.023. 

Under state law, bank deposit balances must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the 
pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market va lue of the pledged 
securities plus Che federal deposit insurance must at al l ti mes equal or exceed the amount 
on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging 
fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39: 1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank 

to advertise and sell the rledged securities within IO days or being notified by the City 
that the fiscal agent has failed lo pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, Louisiana 
Revised Statute 39: l 224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be 
held in the City's name. 

The Bank monitors the account balances at the beginning of each month to detennine 
when more security pledges are necessary. 

At June JO, 2021, the City had interest bearing cash in bank in the amount of$8, 154,934 
and insurance and security pledges of$8, 142.911, resulting in a shortage of pledges in the 
amount of $12,023. 
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CITY or EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Status of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Recommendation: We recommend that the City monitor the security pledges at the end of each month to 
ensure that they have adequate coverage. 

Response: Managemenl understands th is finding and agrees with the recommendation. 

Status: This finding is cleared. 

#2021-004 Timely Preparation of Bank Reconciliations 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not reconcile bank accounts on a timely basis. 

Criteria: All bank reconciliations should be rrepared on a timely basis, as statements are received from the 
bank. 

Cause: The Clerk was unable to prepare reconciliat ions in a timely manner due 10 unexpected 
circumstances arising and a shortage of staff. 

EfTect: Untimely preparation of bank reconciliations results in a de lay in financial reporting and may also 
allow fraudulent activity to go undetected. 

Recommendation: Bank reconcili ations should be prepared on a monlhly basis, as statemenls are available 
from the bank. 

Response : ln the fu ture, bank reconciliations will be prepared in a timely manner, as s tatements are received 
from the bank. 

Status: This finding is repeated as #2022-003 and originated in 2021. 
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CITY OF EUN ICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedl~e of Compensation Paid to Members of the Council 

Year Ended June JO, 2022 

Mayor, Scott f ontenot 
Gennain Simpson 
Marion Sattler 
Connie nubodeaLLx 

Ch.ad Andrepont 

Ernest Blanchard 
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$54,810 

7, I I 9 
l 3,700 
7,119 

7,119 

7,1 19 

$96,986 



Scott F ontenol, Mayor 
Period: I 2 Months 

Salary 
Benefits - retirement 
Benerits - insurance 
CeU phone 

C!TY OF EUNI CE, LOUlS!ANA 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 
Lo Agency Head or Chief Executive Of-licer 

Year Ended June 30. 2022 

$ 54,8 l 0 
13,691 
5,529 

606 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Justice System FW1ding Schedule - Receiving Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Re1::,rular Session 

Cash 11asis Presentation 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Receipts From: 

Eunice City Court, Criminol Fines - ()1her 

Eunice City Court, Witness Fees 

Eunice City Courr, Police 

Subtotal Receipts 

Ending Balance of Amounts Assessed but 
Not Received 

110 

First Six 
Month Pc1iod 

£nded 

12/31/2021 

$ 

$ 

7,008 
2,079 

450 
9,537 

Second Si.x 
Month Pctio<l 

Ended 

06/30/2022 

$ 

$ 

3,185 
1,334 

50 

4,569 



VIGE, TUJAGUE & NOEL. CPA'S 
P. 0. BOX I 006 
EUNICE, LA 70535 

RE: Ma11agemcn1 Response 

The following are our responses to your recommendations we received 111 the City's Audited r-inancial 
Siatement as of June 30, 2022. 

2022-00 I Segregation of Accounting func1ions 

A complete segregation or duties is 1101 feasible due to the c.ost/benerit of hiring additional 
personnel and the size oflhc Ci1y's operacions. 

2022-002 Budget Variance 

The City wi II make the neccs~ary amendments 10 1he budge1 prior 10 year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 

2022-003 Timely Prep<1ralion of 13ank Reconciliations 

In the future, bank reconciliations will be prepared in a timely nrnnner, as statements are received 
from the bank. 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 





SHIRLEY VIGE, JR.. C.P.A. 
FRANK G. TUJAGUE, C.P.A. 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL, C.P.A. 

VIGE, TUJAGUE ~ NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

151 N. 21111 STREET 
P. 0. BOX 1006 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNT ANT'S REPORT 
ON APPL YING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

TELEPHONE: 
337-457-9324 

FAX: 
337-457-8743 

To the Management and Board of Commissioners of the C ity of Eunice, Louis iana and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the contro l and compliance (CIC) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legisla ti ve Auditor's (LLJ\ ' s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. City of Eun ice, Louis iana's 
management is responsible for those CIC areas identified in the SJ\UPs. 

City of Eunice, Louisiana has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the CIC areas identified in LLA · s SAU Ps for the fiscal period July 1, 202 1 through 
June 30, 2022. Additional ly, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed 
are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The 
procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not 
meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether 
the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as fol lows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

I . Obtain and inspect the entity' s written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the fol lowing categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and 
the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amend ing the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

b) Purchasing , including(\) how purchases arc initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
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orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained fo r al l bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

c) Disbursements , including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

d) Receipts/Collections, includ ing receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management' s actions to determine the 
completeness of al l col lections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. , 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconci liation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfe iture 
monies confirmation). 

Written pol icies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (l) payrol l processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked , and (3) approval process for 
employec(s) rate or pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

() Contracting , including (l) types of services requ iring written con tracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including ( I ) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, ( 4) 
required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage ( e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

h) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

i) Ethics, including ( 1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42: 1111-1 121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement Lhat documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified o f any changes to the entity's 
ethics policy. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 
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k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity , including (I) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of anti virus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

The City does not have policies and procedures addressing the functions noted above. 

I) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board' s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board 's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

Obtained and reviewed minu tes of the managing board for the fiscal period noting that the 
board met monthly. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model , observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget­
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managing board for the fiscal period noting that the 
minutes do include monthly budget-to-actual comparisons. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund 
balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

Obtained the prior year audit report and observed that the unassigned fund balance was a 
positive balance. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the 
entity ' s main operating account. Select the entity' s main operating account and randomly 
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select 4 additional accounts ( or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronical ly logged); 

Bank reconciliations were not prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing 
date. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member or management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

Bank reconciliations do not include evidence that a member of management who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each reconciliation. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Bank reconciliations do include evidence that management has researched reconciling 
items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date. 

Collectio11s (excluding e/ectro11icfumls transfers) 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit s ites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained a listing of deposit sites from management and management provided representation 
that the listing is complete. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to employee job duties (ifno written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

Employees responsible for cash collections do share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the depos it. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits. Each employees collections arc reconciled by another employee daily. 
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c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledger. The clerk reconciles the postings to each other and 
the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for 
co llecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconci liation. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are not responsible for reconci ling cash 
coll ect ions to the general ledger. 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering al l 
employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fisca l period. 

Employees who have access to cash are covered by the bond or insurance policy for theft. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 
under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other 
than bank statements ivhen selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection 
Log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 
I O deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Observed that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Traced receipts or collection documentation to the deposit s lip with no exceptions. 

c) Trace the deposit s lip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

Traced the deposit sl ip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement with no exceptions. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than IO miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $ 100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

Observed that deposits were not made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Traced the actual deposits per the bank statement to the general ledger noting no 
exceptions. 
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Non-Payroll Disbursements - General (excluding card purcltases/payments, travel 

reimbursements, and petty caslt purchases) 

8. Obtain a lis ting of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations ( or all locations if less 
than 5). 

Obtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listi ng of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated regarding the functions noted above. 

b) At least tw~ employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated regarding the functions noted above. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor fi ]es. 

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated regarding the functions noted above. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated regarding the functions noted above. 

I 0. for each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payrol l disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by 
the entity. 

Observed that the disbursements matched the related original itemized invoice and the 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received. 
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b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Observed that the disbursement documentation included evidence of segregation of duties 
tested. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11 . Obtain from management a listing or al l acti ve credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
P-cards ( cards) for the fiscal period. including the card numbers and the names of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

Obtained a listing of all active credit cards and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or 
electronical ly approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted on the selected statements .. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under # 12 above, excluding 
fue l cards, randomly select IO transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should 
have IO transactions subj ect to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a " missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

No exceptions noted. 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
# I h). 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing or all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction act ivities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as 
an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 contracts ( or al I contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the 
practitioner's contract, and: 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
( e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Observed that the contracts were not required to be bid in accordance with the Louisiana 
Public Bid Law. 
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b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Observed that the contracts were approved by the board. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

Observed that no contracts were amended. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
suppo11ing invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Randomly selected one payment from each of the contracts tested, and observed that the 
invoice and payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Payroll and Perso1111e/ 

16. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Obtained a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period, and 
management provided representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 
employees and agreed paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fisca l period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their dai ly attendance and leave 
(e.g. , vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally , officials are not eligible to earn 
leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning 
leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her dai ly 
attendance and leave.) 

Observed that al l selected employees documented their daily attendance and leave. 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
or officials . 

Observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees. 

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

Observed that leave accrued and taken during the pay period is reflected in the cumulative 
leave records. 
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d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

Observed that the rate paid to employees agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the entity' s policy on termination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave records, agree the 
pay rates to the employee or officials ' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

No exceptions noted. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Management provided representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts have been paid, and any associated fonns have been filed, by required 
deadlines. 

Etltics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure # 16 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above· obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

The five employees selected for testing did not complete the one hour of ethics training. 

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee 
and official were notified of any changes to the entity' s ethics policy during the fiscal 
period, as applicable. 

There were no changes made to the entity' s ethics policy during the fiscal year. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management' s representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

Management has asserted that the Entity did not have any debt issued during the fiscal year. 
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22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fisca l period and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds, short-li ved asset funds , or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

T here were no bonds/notes outstanding during the fiscal year. 

Fr{lud Notice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management' s representation that the listing is complete. Select al l misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district atto rney of the parish in which the 
entity is domic iled. 

Management has assc11ed that the Entity did not have any misappropriations of public funds 
or assets during the reporting period. 

24. Observe the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Observed that the entity has posted on its premises, the required notice. 

lllformatio11 Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 
report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity' s most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible fo r backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred wi thin the past week. If 
backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g. , tapes, CDs), observe evidence that 
backups are encrypted before being transported. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity ' s most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

c) Obtain a lis ting of the entity ' s computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management' s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers 
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have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting 
system so~ware in use arc currently supported by the vendor. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

Sexual Harassment 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure # 16 under "Payroll and 
Personnel'" above, obtain sexual harassment traini ng documentation from management, and 
observe the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour 
of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

The five employees selected for testing did not complete the required sexual harassment 
training. 

27. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity ' s premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

Observed that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
the entity's premises. 

28. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that 
the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

Management did not prepare the annual sexual harassment report; however, management 
stated that there were no sexual harassment complaints. 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the 
training requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 
c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 
d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline 

or corrective action; and 
e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Management's Response 

Management of the City of Eunice, Louisiana concurs with the exceptions and is working 
to address the deficiencies identi ficd. 

We were engaged by City of Eunice, Louisiana to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American l nstitute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government 
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
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respectively, on those CIC areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, o ther matters might have come 
to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent or City of Eunice, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements re lated to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those CIC areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable fo r any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

yg~t2:nt~ t M 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 8, 2022 
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